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AVI POLYIIyIERS LIMITED
Registered Office: At Ambica Compound, Old H B Road, Ranchi _ 834 001

Mobile: +91 1 048360390, e-mail: avipolvmer@elqail.com
Website:www.avioolvmers.com CIN: L27 204JH1993PLC005233

is hereby given that the 23'd Annual Genera.l Meeting of the members of AVI pol
held at 1 1.00 a.m. on Monday, the 2,6th September,20l6 at the Resistered

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

To receive, consider anrl adopt the audited Balance Sheet as at 3r'tMarch,20r6 and
Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on 31"March,
Reports ofthe Board ofDirectors and Auditors thereon.

]o. appoint a Director in place of Ms. Monika Shah (DIN: 0'1fi6152) who retires by
being eligible seeks re-appointment.

Ratification of Appointment of Auditors
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the
as an Ordinary Resolution:

NOTICE

Limited
of the

situated at At Ambica Compound, Old H B Road, Ranchi - g34 001 tJtransact following

of
i6 and the

rcsolution

2014, as amended from time to time, the Company hereby ratifies the appointment o
Dasani & Co., ( Firm Registration No. l1652lW) , Chartered Accountants. as Aud
Company to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting (A(
conclusion of the twenty-fourth AGM of the company to be held in the year 2017
and audit the accounts ofthe Company at such remuneration as may be mutuallv
the Board ofDirectors ofthe Company and the Auditors.',

*RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 139,142 and, all other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,2013 and the Companies (Audit and ) Rules,

M/S S.S.

of the

till the

exar ne

between

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF D

Chairman and Managing
DIN:00162160

Place:
Date:

AVI POLYMERS LIMITED
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ANNEXURES TO THE NOTICE

ANNEXURE: A

of the Director retiring by rotation and seeking Re-appointment at the .

t meeting pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Re
ion, 2015 and Secretarial Standard: 2 (SS:2) issued by ICSI and apprr
Government.

16

Zf'd Annuat
q[rirements)
tfed by the

'lame of the Director Ms. Monika M. Shah

iather's Name Mukeshkumar K. Shah

)are of Birth t2/08/1991

lualification Bachelor of Business Administration (
BBA) Company Secretary

)ate ofJoining the Board of Director ofthe
)ompany

09t03/201s

{umber of Shares held il the Company Nil

l )irectorship / Membership / Chairmanship of
oard in other companies and Committees

Nil

pecific Functional Area Due Diligence and Corporate law advisory.

€lationship with Directors / inter-se KMp No such relationship

xpenence 2 years

lerms 
and Conditions of appointment As per Resolution passed by the

shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting held on 28ft August,2015 Ms.
Monika Shah was appointed as Executive
Director of the comoanv.

Remuneration sought to be paid and last drawn NIL

Number of meeting of Board of Directors
attended dudng the year

l6 ( Sixteen)
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Notes:
I A member entitle to attend and vote is entitle to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on poll on his/

her behalf and the Proxy need not be member of the company. Pursuant to Sectionligs of the
companies Act, 2013, a person can act as proxy on behalf'of not more than fifty members
holding in aggregate, not more than ten percent of the total share capital of thi company.
Members holding more than ten percent of the totar share capital of the company may appornt a
single person as Proxy, viho shall not act as proxy for any other Member. the Initrument of
Proxy, in order to be effective, should be deposited at the registered office of the company, duly
completed and signed, not later than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. A proxy
form is annexed to this report.

2 Corporate members intending to send thei authorized representative to attend the meeting are
requested to send a certified true copy ofthe Board resolution to the company, authorizing their
representatlve to attend and vote on their behalfat the meeting.

3 The relevant details as required under Regulation 36(3) of sEBI (Listing obligations and
Disclosure Requirements)_ Reguiarions, 20 1 5 c'sEBI Listing Reguiatiooil, oi?" p".ro'
seeking re-appointment as Director under Item No. 2 ofthe Notice, ari also annexed.

4 Members/ proxies should b^ring attendance 
-srip, duly filled in, for attending the meedng. As

proxy form and route map of venue of the 23'd Annual General Meeting are aniexed hereto.

5 Members / proxies attending the. meeting should bring their copy of the Annual Report tbr
reference at the meeting as Copies of Annual Reporr will not 

-be 
distributed at the Annual

General Meeting. In case ofjoint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holiler who is
higher in the order of name will be entitled to vote at the meetins.

6 The register of Members and share transfer books of the company will remain closed from
Thursday 22'd september, 2016 to Monday 26thseptember, 20i6 (6oth days inclusive).

Members desirous of obtaining any information conceming the accounts and oDerations of the
company are requested to address their qrestions to the company so as to reach- at least 7 days
before the date of the meeting, so that the information required will be made available at the
meeting, to the best extent possible.

All documents refe'ed to in the notice anci the explanatory statement requiring the approvar of
the members at the meeting and other statutory register shall be availabie for inspection bv the
Members at the registered office of the company during office hours on aI working days
between 11.00 am to 1.00 p.m. on alr days except saturdays, Sundays and pubric holidan from
the date hereofup to the date ofthe annual general meeting.

The Notice of the 23'd Annual General Meeting with instruction for e-voting, along with
attendance slip and proxy form is being dispatched to the Members by post (and-etectro"nicalty
by e-mail to those Members who have registered their e-maii ir, -itt the comparry
/Depositories), unless any member has .equ"ited for physical copy of the Annual Report.
Members may also note that the notice of the AGM for tiayeur errded on : r', u-Jr, zoior-o
the annual report 2015-16 will be available on the company's website www.avipol)rmers.com
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l0 Members are entitled to make nomination in respect of shares held in physical form. Members
desirous of making nominations are requested to send their requests in Form sH-13 (specimen
available on request) to the registered office of the compaay. Members holding sirares in
electronic mode may contact their respective Depository Participants for availing the-nomination
facility.

1t The Securities Exchange Board of India has mandated the submission of pAN by every
participant in the Securities Market. Members holding securities in electronic form are rJquested
to submit their PAN to their Depository participants members holding shares in physical form
are required to submit PAN to Company.

Members who have not registered their email address with oul Regisuar and Transfer Agent
MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited, if shares are held in physical mode or with their DeposiTory
Participants, if shares are held in electronic mode are requested to d.o so for receivins uil futor"
communications from the company including Annual Repon. Notices, Circilars, eto,
electronically.

I2

13 voting through electronic means: In compliance with provisions of section 10g of the
companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the companies (Management and Administration) Ruies,
!0!a as substituted by the companies (Management ind Administration) Amendment
Rules,2015 and Regulation 44 of 

.the- SERI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 , the company is pleased to provide members facility to exercise their right to
vote at the 23'd Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business niay be
transacted through e-voting. The company has signed an agreement with National secudties
Depository Limited for facilitating such e-voting by the Members. Kindly note that each
Member can opt for only one mode for voting i.e. either by poling papei or by E-votrng.
However, in case members cast their vote both via polling paper and^ e-voting, then voting
through e-voting shall prevail and voting done by polling paper shall be treated a-s invalid. The
detailed instructions for e-voting are given in the Annexure.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 26/0812016

AVI POLYMERS LIMITEI)

and Managing Director
DIN: 00162160
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ANNEXURE: B

Instructions for the voting through electronic means

Members are requested to folow the berow instructions to cast their vote through remote
e-voting at ensuing 23'd Annuar General Meeting of the members of the company scf,eduled to
be herd on Monday, 26'n septernber, 2016 xt 11.00 a.m. at At, Ambica & co. cito tt,s. noao
Ranchi, Jharkhand- 834001

1. The remote e-voting period commences on 23'd september, 2016 (9:00 am) and ends on 25th
September, 2016 (5:00 pm). During this period members, of the Company, holding shares
either in physicar form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off daie oi zo'n s"it"-u".,
2016, may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by
NSDL for voting thereafter. once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the member
shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

2 In case a Member receives an email from NSDL [for members whose ema IDs are registered.
with the Company/Depository parricipants(s)l :

i. open email and open pDF fire viz; "e-voting-pdf' with your client ID or Folio No. as
password rhe said pDF file contains your user ID and password,prN for remote e-
voting. Please note that the password is an initial password.

ii. Launch internet browser by typing the following URL: httns;h,rvw.evoting.$dlcom/

iii. Click on Shareholder - Losin

iv. Put user ID and password as initial password./plN noted in step (i) above. Click Login.

v. Password change menu appears. Change the password,?IN with new password of your
choice with minimum 8 digits/characters or combination thereof. Nole new purr*o.d. It
ts strongly recornnended not to share yoru password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential.

vi. Home page ofremote e-voting opens. Click on remote e_voting: Active Voting Cycles.

vii. Select "EVElrt" of "AVI polymers Limited,'.

viii. Now you are ready for remote e-voting as Cast Vote page opcns.

ix. Cast your vote by selecting applopdate option and click on .,Submif, and also
"Confi rm" when prompted.

x. Upon confirmation, the message ,,Vote 
cast successfully,, will be displayed.

xi. Once you have voted onthe resolution, youwill notbe allowed to modif your vote.

xii. Instihrtional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to
send scanned copy (pDF/JpG Format) ofthe relevant Board Resolution/ Autho.ity l"tt",
etc together with attested specimen signature of the dury authorized signatoryiiesy wtro
are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer through e_mail to ialanalk-eshdgmail-com
with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in
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3' In case a Member receives physical copy of the Notice of AGM ffor members whose email IDs
are not registered with the Company,Depository participants(s) or requesting physical copyl :

(i) Initial password is provided as belodat the fiont ofthis letter

EVEN (Remote e-votingEventNurmber.| IISERTD PASSWORD/PIN

(iD Please follow all steps from Sr. No. (ii) to Sr. No. (xii) Above, to cast l/ote.

4. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked euestions (FAes) for Members and
remote e-voting user manual for Members available at the downloads section of
www.eyotinq,nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: lg00_222_990.

5' If you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then you can use your existing user ID
and password,{PlN for casting your vote.

6 You cal1 also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details of the folio which
may be used for sending fuhre communication(s).

T The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares ofthe paid up equity share capital
ofthe Company as on the cut-off date of 20th September,2016.

8 . Any person, who acquires shares of the company and become member of the company after dispaich
ofthe notice and holding shares as ofthe cut-off date i.e. 20th september,20l6 may obtain the login ID
and password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co,in,

9. However, ifyou are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then you can use your existung
user ID and password for casting your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password
by using'ForSot User Details/Password" option available on wnry.evotins.nsdl.com or contact NSDL
at the following foll free no.: LB00:ZZ2-990.

10. For the person who receives this notice and who is not a membe4 as on the cut-off date i.e. 20,'
September, 2016 should heat this notice for information purpose only.

I l ' A member may participate in the AGM even after exercising his right to vote tbrough remote e-voting
but shall not be allowed to vote again at the AGM.

12. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners
maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of
remote e-votlng as well as voting at the AGM though polling paper.

13. Mr' Alkesh Jalan, Practicing company secretary (Membership No. ACS: 15677 cp:4580) has been
appointed for as the Scrutinizer for providing facility to the members of the Company to scrutinize the
voting and remote e-vofing process in a fair and transparent mamer.

14' The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be
held, allow voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of '?oling paper', for a1 those membsrs
who are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes by ava ing the remote e-votiug facility.

15' The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, will first count the votes
cast at the meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at
least two witnesses not in the employment ofthe company and sharl make, not iater than three days of
the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidatecl scrutinizer's report of the total votes cast in favor or
against, if any, to the chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, who shalr countersign the
same and declare the result ofthe votine forthwith.



AVI POLYMERS LIMITED 2gt5-t6
16. The Results declared along with the report ofthe Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website ofthe

Company www'avipolYmers.com and on the website of NSDL immediately after the declaration of
result by the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing. The results shall also be immetliately
forwarded to the Ahmedabad Stock Exchange Limited and BSE Limited where the shares ofthe
company are listed.



AVI I'ULYIVItrK) LIVII I T.U zunb-1&

Route map to the Venue of the AGM

Address of Registered office

At.Ambica& co.

Old H.B. Road,

Ranchi. Jharkhand-83400 1
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DIRECTORS'REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
The'directors take pleasure in presenting their 23'd Annual Report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended March 31"t, 2016. The Management Discussion and
Analysis has also been incorporated into this repoft.

1. Financial summarv or highlights/performance of the Comoanv

Particulars Year Ended

31.03.2016

Amount (Rs)

Year Ended

3 i.03.2015

Amount (Rs)

Profit before Finance costs,

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses

6651s 7s068

Less:

Finance Cost (4e72) (sr7s)

Depreciation and Amortization expenses (10062)

Profit before Exceptional item and
Extraordinary Item

61543 59831

Exceptionai Item 0 0

Extraordinary Item 0 0

Provision for taxation:

Current tax 1 1800 11400

Less: MAT Credit entitlement 1 1800 (11400)

Deferred tax 0 0

Profit/(Loss) for the period 61543 59831

Add: Balaace of profit /(Loss) brought
forward from previous year

(r1,933,255) (11,e93,086)

Loss carried to the Balance sheet (118,71,712) (rr,933,2ss)



To the best of their knowledge and belief and according
explanations obtained by them, your Directors make the
terms of Section 13a(3)(c) of the Compaties Act. 2013:
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to the information and
following statements in

ll.

In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting
standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material depaffures.

The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
compary at the end of the financial year as on 3l/03/2016 and of the
profit ofthe company for that period.

The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the
malntenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irrezularities.

l1l.

2, Performance Reyiew

During the financial year company has reported totar revenue of Rs.423.69 lakhs as
against the total revenue of Rs. 324.48 lakhs in the previous year. Net profit of the
company during the current financiai year stands at Rs. 0.62 lakhs as against profit of
Rs. 0.60 lakhs in the previous vear.

3. Dividend

Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year.

4. Share capital

The issued Equity Share capital as on 31't March, 2016 is Rs.560.73l-acs. During the
year under review, the company has not issued shares with differential voting
rights nor granted stock options nor sweat equity. paid up Equity capital of the
company as on 3l"'March, 2016 stands at Rs.409.07 lakhs.



6.

1
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lV. The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concem
basis.

The Directors had laid down intemal fnancial controls to be followed
by tlre company arld that such internal financial controls are adesuate
and were operating effectively.

The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliaace with
the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were
adequate and operating effectively.

Listing on Stock Exchanges

Your company's shares are listed on BSE Limited and Ahmedabad stock Exchanse
Limited.

Subsidiary Company

The company does not have any subsidiary. During the year Boscogen overseas
Limited ceased to be an associate company of AVI polymers Limited.

As required by SEBI (Listing Obligations
Regulations,20l5 with the Stock Exchanges, the

Report, Management Discussion and Analysis,
regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate
Annuai Reoort.

and Disclosure Requirements)

Corporate Govemalce
and the Auditor's Certificate

Govemance, form part of the

9. Secretarial Audit Report

Pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the companies Act,2013 and rhe
companies (Appointment and Rerruneration of Managerial personnel) Rules,
2014, the Company has appointed M/S Jalan Alkesh & Associates, a firm of
company secretaries in Practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the
company. No adverse cornments have been made in the said report by the practicing
company secretary. The Secretariar Audit Report is annexed. herewith as
"Annexure C,'.
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The Extract of Annual Return in form No. MGT-9 as per Section 134 (3) (a) of the
companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 and
Rule 12 of Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014 is annexed
herewith as "Annexure D, and forms part of this report.

Further the Disclosure in the Board Report under Rule 5 of companies (Appointment
&Remuneration) Rules, 2014 is also annexed. herewith as ,.Annexure E" and forms
part of this report.

11. Declaration on Independent Directors

The Board of Directors declares that the Independent Directors Mr. Maulik shah. Mr.
Jayesh Dave and Mr. Dinesh Chauhan are:

a. in the opinion of the Board, are persons of integrity and possesses relevant
expertise and experience;

b. (i) who were or were not a promoter of the company or its holding, subsidiary
or associate company

(ii) who are not related to promoters or directors in the company, its holding,
subsidiary or associate Company;

c. who have or had no pecuniary rerationship with the company, its holding,
subsidiary or associate company or their promoters or directors, dudng the two
immediately preceding financial years or during the cuffent financial year;

d. None of whose relatives has or had pecuniary relationship or transaction with
the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company or their promoters,
or directors, amounting to two percent or mole of its gross tumover of total
income or fifty lakh rupees or such higher amount as may be prescribod,
whichever is lower, during the two immediately preceding financiar years or
during the current financial year;

e. Who, neither himself nor any of his relatives _

i. holds or has held the position ofa key managerial personnei or is or has
been employee of the company or its holding, subsidiary or associate
company in any of the three financial year immediately preceding the
financial year in which he is proposed to be appointed;
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ii. is or has been an employee or propriety or a paltner, in any of the three
financial years immediately preceding the financial year in which he is
proposed to be appointed, of-

a. a firrn of auditors or company secretaries in practice or cost auditors or
the company or its hoiding, subsidiary or associate compary; or

b. any legai or a consulting firm that has or had any transaction with the
company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company amounting to ten
percent or more of the gross tumover of such firm:

iii. holds together with his relative two per cent, or more of the total votins
power of the company; or

iv. is a Chief Executive or director, by whatever name called, of any
nonprofit organization that receives twenty-five percent or more of its
receipts from the company, any of its promoteis, directors or its holding,
subsidiary or associate compaty or that holds two per cent or more of the
total voting power ofthe company; or

f. Who possesses such other qualification as may be prescribed.

12. Particulars of Loans. guarantees or investments

Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under Section lg6 of the companies
Act,Zol3 form part of the notes to the financiar statements provided in the Annual
Report. The loans aad advances mentioned in the financial statement have been siven
for business purpose.

13. Deposits

Your company has not accepted deposits from pubric as envisaged 
'nder 

sections 73
to 76 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (acceptance of Deposit) Rules.
20t4.

No related party transaction was taken place during the year under review.
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The company has no activities relating to conserva[ion of energy and technolggy
absorption. The company has no foreign eamings and putgo.

16. Risk Manaeement Policy imnlemen.t4Eqn

The Company has developed comprehensive risk mpnagement policy and same is
reviewed by the Audit committee, which in turn, informs the Board about the risk
assessment and minimization procedures. Major risks identified for the company by
the management are Currency fluctuation, Compliance, Regulatory changes,
Manufacturing & Supply, Litigation, Information Technology and new capital
mvestments refum. The management is however, of tlre view that none of the above
risks may threaten the existence of the company as robust Risk mitigation mechanism
is put in place to ensure that there is nil or minimum impact on the company in case
any of these risks materialise. since the risk controll frame work is new to Indian
Corporate Culture, it is being strengthened. on continuoius basis.

17. Corporate social resnonsibility

section 135 of the companies Act, 2013 has imposed csR mandate on companiies
having minimum threshold limit of net worth, tumover or net profit u, pr"r".ib"d.
Since the company does not meet any one of these criterion, it remains outside the
puwiew of Sec.135 and consequently the reporling requirements thereund.er do not at
present apply to us.

The company however as a responsible corporate qitizen has constituted a CSR
committee and formulated a. cSR policy. Iis cSR poricy on voruntary basis is
fumished in Annexure- F forming part of this report.

The company has in place an Anti harassment policy in line with the requirements of
the Sexual Harassment of women at workplace fprevention, prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013. Any compraint/ grievances from women employees are reported
to Chairman and Managing Director. All employoes (permanent, contractual.
tempomry, trainees) are covered under the policy. Thele was no complaints received
from any employee during the financial year 2015-16 and no complaint is outstanding
as on3l/0312016.



AVI PULYIVIT.Kb LIIVII I trU tulb-"t"b

19. Directors:

A) Changes in Directors and Key Mlanagerial personnel

Mr' Karan Mishra, chief Financial officer of the company had given resignation
from his post with effect from 31"t August,2015. The Board has placed on record its
appreciation for the outstanding contributions made by Mr. Karan Mishra durine his
respective tenures of office.

The Board of Directors had on the
RemunerationCommittee appointed
Officer on 3'd September,20l5 .

The Members of the company had on 286 August,2015 regularize Ms. Monika Shah
from Additional Director to Executive Director and Appointed Mr. Jayesh Dave as an
Independent director of the company in the Amual General Meetins

B) Formal Annual Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions ofthe companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing obligations
and Disclosure Requirements)Regr.ilations,2015, the Board has carried out an annual
performance evaluation ofits own performance, the directors individually as
well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit, Nomination & Remuneration and
compliance committees. The manner in which the evaruation has been carried out
has been explained in the Corporate Governance Report.

20. Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of section 139 of the Act and the rules framed thereafter,
M/s. S. S. Dasani & Co.. Chartered Accountants, were appornted as stafutorv
ry{lors 9r the company from the conclusion of the 23'd arn.rar general -."ti"g(AGM) of the company held on Augusr 28,2015 till the conclusion ofthe AGM to
be held in the year 2020 subject to ratification of their appointment at every
AGM.

21. Whistle Blower Policv:

In accordance with the requirements of the Act, read. with SEBI (Listing obrigations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regurations, 2015, the company has a whistre Blower policy
approved by the Board ofDireciors. The objectives ofthe policy are:

To provide a mechanism for employees and. direotors of the company and other persons
dealing with the Company to report to the Audit Committee; any mstances of unethical
behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation ofthe Company,s Ethics policy.

recommendation of the Nomination &
Mr. Mitesh Meghani as Chief Financial



To safeguard the confidentiality and interest of such employees/directors/other persons
dealing with the company against victimization, who notice and report any unethi"ul or
improper practices.

To appropriately communicate the existence of such mechanism, within the organization and
to outsiders. Whistle blower policy is available on website of the Company.

The company confums that no personnel has been denied access to the audit committee
pursuant to the whistle blower mechanism

22. Acknowledgements

The Directors gratefulry acknowledge all stakeholders of the compaay viz. customers,
members, dealers, vendors, banks and other business parhrers for the excellent support
received from them during the year. The Directors place on .ecord th"i, ,irr""r"
appreciation to all employees of the company for their unstinted commitment ano
continued contribution to the Companv.

AVI TULYIVITKb LIIVII I trJ.J zt }b"1b

F'OR AND O1\ BEHALF OF' THE
BOARD OFDIRECTORS OF
A\T POLTMERS LIMITED
CIN:

Managing Director
DIN: 00162160

Place: Ahmedabad
Date:27/05/2016
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Annexure C to Boards Report

Form No. MR-3 For the financial year ended on 31st March, 2016
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the

Companies (Appointrnent and Remuneration personnel) Rules, 20141
To,
The Members,
AVI Polymers Limited

I have conducted the secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by AVI polymers Limited
(hereinafter called the company). secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided me a reasonabre basis for evaruating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the AVI pol)umers Limited books, papers, minute bookg
forms and returns filed and other records rnaintained by the iompany and also the
informafion provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in rny
opiniorL the company has, during the audit period covering the financiar year ended
on 31 March, 2016 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and arso
that the Company has proper Board-processes ancl compliance_mechanism in place
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papert minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31 March, 2015
according to the provisions of :

I.
II.

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
The securities Contracts (Reguration) Act, 7956 (scRA') and the rules made
there under;
The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye{aws framed there
under;
Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rures and regulations made
there under to the extent of Foreign Direct h'rvestmen! overseas Direct
Investment and Extemal Commercial Borrowings;
The following Regulations and Guiderines prescribed under the securities and
Exchange Board of India Ac! 1992 (,SEBI Act,\:
The securities and Exchange Board of h-rdia (substantial Acquisition of shares
ar-rd Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

ilL

IV,

V.
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b. The securities and Exchange Board of Lrdia (prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

c. The securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

d' The securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee stock option scheme
and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008;

f. The securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and share
Transfer Agents) Reg:lations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with clien!

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Sharres)
Regulations, 2009 and

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of hrdia (Buy Back of Securities)
Regulations, 1998;

i' The securities and Exchange Board of India (share based employee benefits)
Regulations, 2014

j. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Other Laws Applicable to the Company:

i. Income Tax Act, L96L.

ii. CST Act 1956

iii. Negotiable lrstrument Act, 1BB1

iv. Gujarat value Added Tax Act, 2003

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i. secretarial standards issued by The Institute of Company secretaries of India.

ii. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited and
Ahmedabad Stock Exchange Limited.

During the period under review the company has complied with the provisions of
the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.
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I further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duiy constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all the directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda
and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All the decisions are carried out unanimously and are capfured and recorded as parr
of the minutes of the meetings of Board of Directors.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable lawq rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period, there were no specific events/actions
having major bearing on company's affairs in pursuance of the above - referled
laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards ,standards, etc.

For, |ALAN ALKESH & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

Date:2710512016
Place : Ahmedabad

ALKE$HJALAN
PROPRIETOR
ACS NO:15677
C P NO:4580

ffim
Wdd



ANNEXURE-D

Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF AI\NUAL RETURN as
on the financiail year ended on 31,r

March,2016

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and mle
(Nlanagement and Administration) Rules, 20141

AVI I'ULYIVIT,K) LIIVII I b.U zutb-tb

12(1) of the Companies

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

II. PRINCTPAL BUSINESS ACTII'ITIES OT'TIIE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 0/o or more of the total tumover of tte
company shall be stated:-

CIN L27 204JHt 993PLC00 5233
Registration Date 01/03/t993
Name of the Company I AVI POLYMERS LIMITED

l'ubllc C'ompany Limited by shares

Mob No: +91 7048360390
YES
r'
rvrL ) bhare I ransler Agent Limited
1 2 / 1 / 5, Manoharpukur Road,
Kolkata-700026

T el: 033-407 2405 1 / 52/ 53
Fax: 033-40724050

Category / Sub-Category oI the
Cornpany
qddret of the Registered office
and goptact details
WhethRr list€d company
Name,. address and contact
details-of Registrar and Transfer
Agent, if any

L
2

Sl. No. Name and

Description of main

products / services

NIC Code of the Product/

service

% to total

turnover of the

company

1 Wholesale trading of
Chemicals

466- Wholesale of lndustrial
Chemicals.

97.75%
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1II. PARTICULARS
COMPAJ\IES
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OF HOLDING, SI]BSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE

S,

NO

NAME AND
ADDRESS OF THE

COMPANY

crN/GLN HOLDING/

SUBSIDIARY

/ASSOCIATE

%of
shares

held

Applicable

Section

NIL

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equif Share Capital Bre4kup as percentag€ of
Total Equity)

i) Categot-wke Share Holding

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning offhe
year[As on 3 1-March-2015]

No. of Shares held at the end of the-
year[As on 31-March-2016]

%

Change

during

the

year *
Demat Physical Total %o of

Total
Shares

Demat Physical Total %o of
Total
Shares

A, Promoter s

(1) Indian

a) Individua.l,/

HUF*
1404s00 82000 1486500 It).) I 1s38s00 0 1s38500 27.43 (0.e2)

b) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

c) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

d) Bodies Corp. 197000 315000 sr2000 9.13 197000 0 i97000 3.51 (s.62)

e) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

f) Any other* 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total
shareholding of
Promoter (A) 1601s00 397000 1998500 35.64 r735s00 0 1735500 30.95 {4.6e)
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B. Public
Shareholding

L Institutions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

b) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

c) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

d) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-\ \/--r,,ra

Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

f) Insurance

Companies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

g) FIIs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

h) Foreign
Venture Capital

Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

i) Others

(specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-total
(BXl):- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2. Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian 835700 0 835700 14.90 835600 0 835600 14.90 0

ii) Overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders

holding nominal

share capital

upto Rs. 1 lakh 1000 349400 350400 6.25 1107 162500 163607 2.92 -J.JJ
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ii) Individual
shareholders

holding nominal

share capital in

excess of Rs 1

lakh 281100 589300 870400 15.52 t218793 82200 1300993 23.20 +8.02

c)Others
( HUF) 0 35700 35700 0.64 55000 0 55000 0.98 0

Forfeited Shares

Q.{ot reissued) 0 1516600 1516600 21 .05 0 1516600 1516600 27 .45 0

Non Resident

Indians 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Overseas

Corporate

Bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Foreigl
Nationals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Clearing

Members 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Trusts 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Foreign Bodies -
DR 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-total
(B)(2):- 1117800 2491000 3608800 64.36 2110500 u61300 3871800 69.05 +4.69

Total Public

Shareholding
(B):(B)(l)+
(BX2) 1117800 2491000 3608800 64.36 2110500 1761300 387 r 800 69.0s +4.69

C. Shares held

by Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Grand Total
(A+B+C) 2719300 2888000 5607300 100 3846000 1761300 5607300 100 0

+Previous year's figure has been regrouped whenever necessary for better presentation.
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(t|)S har eho lding oJ P ro m ote r s

SN Shareholder's
Name

Shareholding at the beginning of the
ye'I 0110412015

Share holding at the end of the year

31t03/20t6

Vt
change
in share

holding
during
the year

No, of
Shares

Vo of
total
Shares of
the
company

Toof Shares

Pledged I
encumbered
to total
shares

No. of
Shares

o/o of total
Shares of
the
company

Toof Shares

Fledged I
encumbered
to total
shares

I Akhai Ram Patel 55000 0.98 0 r 89000 3.37 0 2.39

2 Khemji Patel 42000 0.75 0 0 0 0 (0.75)

3 Govind Patel 40000 0.71 0 0 0 0 (0.71)

4 Mansukh Patel 208000 J.IT 0 208000 3.11 0 0

5 Monolink Trexim
Pvt Ltd. 134000 2.39 0 0 0 0

(2.3e)

6 AKAI Securities

Pvt Ltd. 181000 3.23 0 0 0 0

(3.23)

7 AAR \IEE
Industries Ltd. 197000 3.51 0 197000 3.51 0

0

8 Mansukh Patel

(HUF) i 141500 20.36 0 1141500 20.36 0

0

Total 1998500 35.64 0 1735500 30.9s 0 (4.6e)
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(iri) Change in Promoters' Shareholding @lease speciff if there is no change)

SN Shareholding at the
beginning

of the year

Curnulative Shareholding
during the

year

No. of'

shares

o/o ol total

shares ofthe

company

No. of
shares

7o of total

shares ofthe

company

1 Akhai Ram Patel

At the beginning of the year
Transfer on 1211012015

At the end ofthe year

55000
134000
189000

0.98
2.39
3.37

55000
189000
189000

0.98
3.37
J.J /

2 Khemji Patel

At the beginning of the year
Sale on2I/l2l2ol5

At the end of the year

42000
(42000)
0

0.75
(0.7s)
0

42000
0
0

0.75
0
0

3 Govind Patel

At the begirming of the year
Transfer on21l12/2015
At the end of the year

40000
(40000)
0

0.71
(0.71)
0

40000
0
0

0.71.

0
0

4 Monolink Trexim Pvt Ltd.
At the beginning of the year
Transfer on 12110/2015
At the end of the year

134000
(134000)
0

2.39
(2.3e)
0

134000
0
0

2.39
0
0

5 AKAI Securities Pr4 Ltd.
At the beginning of the year

Transfer on 23111/2015
At the end ofthe year

18i000
(181000)
0

(3.23)
0

181000
0
0

J.ZJ

0
0
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other thun Directors, Promoters and l{olders of: GDRs and

ADRs):

SN For Each of the Top 10

Shareholders

Shareholding at the

beginning

of the year

Cumulative

Shareholding during

the

year

No. of
shares

Yo of rotal

shares of
the

company

No. of
shares

o/o of total

shares of
the

company

1 Shivarjan Chemicals Pvt. Ltd

At the beginning ofthe year

Bought during the year

Sold on 15/1212015

At the end ofthe year

835700

0

i00

r4.90

0

0.001

835700

83s700

835600

835600

1.4.90

14.90

t4.90

t4.90

2 Shwetang Shah

At the beginning of the year

Sa]le on3011212015

Bought on 16102/2016

Sold on 11/03/2016

Sold on l5103/2016

Sold on 16/03/2016

Sold on l7103/2016

Sold on l8/03/2016

Sold on 21103/2016

At the end ofthe year

557500

550000

550000

1

1

I

I

I

i

9.94

9.80

9.80

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

557500

7500

557500

s57 499

5s7498

557497

557496

557495

557494

557494

9.94

0.14

9.94

9.94

9.94

9.94

9.94

9.94

9.94

9.94

3 Kamleshkumar Lalwani

At the beginning ofthe year 281100 5.01 281100 5.01
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Bought on 21/12/2015

Sale on 30/1212015

Bought on 16102/2016

Sold on 10/03/2016

At the end of the year

82000

280000

280000

1

r.46

4.99

4.99

0.00

363100

83100

363100

363099

363099

6.47

1.48

6.48

6.48

6.48

4 Yogesh P. Puri

At the b€ginning ofthe year

Bonght on 10103/2016

Sold during the year

At the end ofthe year

0

r7t200

0

0

3.05

0

1'71200

171200

t7 t200

3.05

3.05

3.05

5 Amita R. Mehta

At the beginning of the year

Bought on 23i I 1/2015

Sold during the year

At the end of the year

1700

53900

0

0.03

0.96

0

55600

55600

ss600

0.99

0.99

0.99

6 Rajnikant Mehta HUF

At the beginning of the year

Bot$t on 23/1112015

Sold during the year

At the end of the year

35700

19300

0

0.64

0.34

0

35'700

55000

55000

55000

0.64

0.98

0.98

0.98

7 Rajnikant Mehta

At the begiming of the year

Bought on 23111i2015

Sold during the year

At the end of the year

0

53900

0

0

0.96

0

53900

53900

53900

0.96

0.96

0.96
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8 Shardaben R. Mehta

At the beginning ofthe year

Bottght on23l11/2015

Sold during the year

At the end ofthe year

0

53900

0

0

0.96

0

53900

s3900

53900

0.96

0.96

0.96

9 Jogesh Talreja

At the beginning ofthe year

Bought on 10/1212015

Sold during the year

At the end ofthe year

0

L5700

0

0

0.28

0

15700

r5700

15700

0.28

0.28

0.28

10 Bhakti C. Talreja

At the beginning of the year

Bought on l0ll2/2015

Sold during the year

At the end ofthe year

0

15300

0

0

0.27

0

15300

15300

15300

0.21

0.27

0.27
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(v) Sharehokting of Directors and Key Manugerinl personnel:

SN Shareholding of each Directors anil each

Key Managerial P er so n n eI
Shareholding at the

of the year

Cumulative

Shareholding during the

year

No. of
shares

Yo of total

shares of
the

company

No. of
shares

%o of total

shares of
the

company

1 Mansukh Patel- Managing Director

At the begiming of the year

At the end of the year

208000

208000

3.71

3.71

208000

208000

3.71

3.71

2 Jayesh Dave-Director

At the beginning ofthe year

At the end of the year

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3 Dinesh Chauhan-Director

At the beginning ofthe year

At the end ofthe year

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

4 Maulik Pradipkumar Shah-Director

At the beginning of the year

At the end ofthe year

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

5 Monika Shah- Director

At the beginning of the year

At the end of the year

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0
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V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued tlut not due for paynent

\.I. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director/ Whole time Director:

Secured Loans
excluding deposits

Unsecured

Loans
Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of
the financial year

i) Principal Amount 0 0 0 0

ii) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0

iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0 0

Total (i+ii+iii) 0 0 0 0

Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year

0 0 0 0

* Addition 0 0 0 0

+ Reduction 0 0 0 0

Net Change 0 0 0 0

Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year

i) Principal Amount 0 0 0 0

ii) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0

iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0 0

Total (i+ii+iii) 0 0 0 0

SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD Name of
Executive
Director

Total
Amount

Mansukh Patel Monika Shah

1 Gross salary 0 0 0
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(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section l7(l) ofthe Income-tax Act, 1961

0 0 0

ft) Value of perquisites uls f7Q)
Income{ax Act, 1961

0 0 0

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) Income- tax Act, 7961

0 0 0

2 Stock Option 0 0 0

3 Sweat Equity 0 0 0

4 Commission
- as % of profit
- others, speci$r...

0 0 0

5 Others, please specify 0 0 0
Total (A) 0 0 0

Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other directors

SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total
Amount

Dinesh
Chauhan

Maulik
Pradipkumar
Shah

Jayesh
Dave

I Independent Directors

Fee for attending board committee
meetrngs

0 0 0 0

Commission 0 0 0 0

Others, please speci$' 0 0 0 0

Total (1) 0 0 0 0

2 Other Non-Executive Directors

Fee for attending board committee
meetrngs

0

Commission 0

Others, please specif' 0

Total (2) 0

Total (B):( 1+2) 0
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANA.GER/WTD

Total Managerial
Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

SN Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel

CEO CS

Monika
Shah

cFo Total

Karan
Mishra
(from
0t.04.2015
to
31.08.201s)

Mitesh
Meghani
(from

03.09.201.5

to
31.03.2016)

1 Gross salary N.A 121939 98367 184351 404657

(a) Salary as per provisions contained
in section 17(1) of the Income,tax Act,
1961

N.A 0 0 0 0

(b) Value of perquisites ils 17(2)
Income-tax Act, l96l

N.A 0 0 0 0

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

N.A 0 0 0 0

2 Stock Option N.A 0 0 0 0

3 Sweat Equity N.A 0 0 0 0

4 Commission N.A 0 0 0 0

- as o% of profit N.A 0 0 0 0

others, specifu . . N.A 0 0 0 0

5 Others, please specif, N.A 0 0 0 0

Total N.A 121939 98367 184351 404657
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XII, PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOI]NDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the
Companies
Act

Brief
Description

Details of
Penalty I
PunishmenV
Compounding
fees imposed

Authority
tRD I
NCLT/
COURT]

ma4e,
if any (give Details)

A. COMPAI|T

Penalty

NonePunishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

None

Punishment

Compor.rnding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

None
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ANNEXURE: E

Disclosure in the Board's Report under Rule 5(1) of Companies (Appointrfent
& Remuneration) Rules. 2014

(i) The Ratio of the
remuneration of each director
to the median remuneration
ofthe
employees of the company
for the financial year 2015-16

Nil

(ii) The Percentage increase in
remuneration of each
Director, Chief Financial
Officer,
Chief Executive Officer,
Company Secretary or
Manager if any in the
financial year
2015-16 compared to 2014-
l5 means parl ofthe year

Name of CS/CFO 7o Increase in
Remu:neration
based on
annualized

Ms. Monika Shah- Company secretary
Mr. Karan Mishra {FO rup ro 31.08.201

0
14,'-'-------_

Mr. Mitesh Meghani- CFO (from 03.09.20t6;) No comparision
is possible as
appointed
during the year.

(iii) Percentage increase in the
median remuneration of
employees in the financial
year 2015-16 compared to
2014-r5

Increase in the median remuneration of employees in the Financiall
2015-16 as compared to 2014-15 is 39.24%o

year

(iv) Number of permanent
employees on the rolls of the
company

As on 31.03.2016 As on 31.03.2015

6 10
(v) Explanation on the

relationship between average
increase in remuneration and
the company performance

As there was minute increase in the profits of the company therbfore
increase in tle remuneration of emplovees is deferred.

(vi) Comparison of the
remuneration of the Key
Managerial Personnel against
the
performance of the companv

Not Applicable
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("ii) Variation in market
capitalization of the
company, price eamings ratio
, percentage lncrease
/decrease of market
quotations , net worth of the
company as at the close of
current financial year and
previous financial year

As securities ofthe company are not traded therefore market value bf the
shares are not available. Further net worth ofthe company as at the close
of the cnrrent financial year ended, 31/0312016 is Rs. 32430598/+ and
previous financial year ended 31/03/2015 was Rs.32818495/-.

(viii) Average percentile increase
in salades of Employees
other than managerial
Personnel

Nil

(ix) Comparison of each
remuleration of the Key
Managerial Personnel against
the
performance of the Companv

Name of
Key
Managerial
Personnel

Remuneration for the years
ended

Reason against
performance ofthe
Company

31,03.20t6 31.03.2015

Ms. Monika
Shalt
(Company
Secretary)

Frs. 121939 @
Rs. 10000 per
month and
bonus

Rs. 40019 @
Rs.10000 per
month and bonus

No Change

Up to 31.08.2015 Mr. Karan
Mishra
(Chief
Financial
Officer)

Rs. 98367 @
Rs. 20000 per
month

.Rs.104435 @ Rs.
17500 per month

fncrease in the
remuneratron as per
the industry scale

Date of Appointment
03.09.2015

Mr. Mitesh
Meghani
Chief
Financial
Officer)

Rs. 184351 @21000 per
month

N.A Since appointed
with an effect from
03/09/2016 so not
comparable.

(x) Key parameter for any
variable component of
remuneration availed by the
Directors

N.A.
As no remuneratiou payment policy to directors

(xi) Ratio of the remuneration of
the highest paid director to
that of the employees
who are not directors but
recsive remuneration in
excess the highest paid
director
during the year

Nit

(xii) The Board of Directors of the Company affrms that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the
Comoanv.
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Annexure-tr'

Applicabilitv

Section 135 of the Companies Act,2013 has imposed CSR mandate on companies meeting any one of the
following criterion:

o Net worth exceeding Rs.500 crores

. Turnover exceeding Rs.1000 crores

. Net profit exceeding Rs.5 crores

Since the company does not meet with any of the criteria specified above in FY 2015-i6, the CSR rnandate u./s
135 is presently not applicable to the company. Consequently it is not obligated to spend 2Yo of avelage net
profit during the three immediately preceding financial years in pursuance of its cSR policy.

Coworate So cial Responsibilitv Committee:

While the Company is not covered by Section 135 of the Companies Act,2013 forthe financial yeaq 2015-16,it
has voluntarily constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprising of the following rnembers of
the Board of Directors of the compaay as members of csR committee as on 3l"t March, 2016:

Members Category

Mr. Dinesh Chauhan, Chairman Independent Director

Mr. Mansukh Patel Managing director

Mr. MaulikPradiDkumar Shah Independent Director

Corporate social Resoonsibilitv Policv:

1. Short Title and Applicability

This policy, describes the responsibility as a corporate citizen and lays down the guidelines 4nd
mechanism for undertaking socially useful programs for welfare & sustainable development of the
community at large, is titled as AVI Poiymers Limited - Corporate Social Responsibility (CgR) Policy'.

This policy shall apply to all CSR initiatives and activities taken up at the various locations, as decided
by the CSR Committee and / or the Board of AVI Polymers Limited for the benefit of varioqs segments
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of the society. We wish every life to be empowered and every deed to have a meaningful impact on

socioty.

The Policy shall be further govemed by the provisions of the Companies A:|20L3, the ruleS framed

thereunder by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs i.e., the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility

Policy) Rules, 2014 and other statutory provisions goveming the matter.

2. SCOPE

2.1 Areas I Localities to be covered

The Company shall give preference to the local area and the areas around it where it operates, for
spending the amount earmarked for CSR activities. On need basis, the CSR activities could be extended

to any area of the Country.

2.2 Activities

The Company shall undertake CSR projects or prograns which fall within the purview oft( e activities

specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act,2013. The list of the same is as under:

i. eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting healthcare including prevgntive health
care and sanitation including contribution to the Swach Bharat Kosh sefup by the Central
Govemment for the promotion of sanitationand making available safe drinking water;

ii. promoting education including special education, and employment enhancing voc4tional skills,
especially among children, women, elderly, and the differently abled and livelihood
enhancement projects;

iii. promoting gender equality, empowering women, setting up homes and hostels for women and

orphans, setting up old age homes, day care centres, and such other facilities for senior citizens,

and measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially and economically backward groups;

iv. enswing environmentaL sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and {auna, animal
welfare, agto forestry, conservation of natural resources and maintaining quality of soil, air and
water including contribution to the Clean Ganga Fund setup by the Cenhal Goyemment for
rej uvenation of river Ganga.

v. protection of national heritage, art and culture, including restoration of buildings an{ sites of
historical impoftance and works of art, setting up public libraries, promotion and deYelopment of
traditional arts and handicrafts;

vi. measures for the benefit of armed force veterans, war widows and their dependents;

vii. training to promote rural sports, nationally recognized sports, paralympic sports and Olympic

Snorts:
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contribution to Prime Ministers National Relief Fund or any other Fund set up by tho central
Govemment, for socio economic development and relief and welfare of the scheduled castes, the
scheduled tribes, other backward classes, minorities and women

ix. contributions or funds provided to technology incubators located witlin academic institutions
which are approved by the Central Govemment

Rural Development Proiects.

The CSR Committee and the Board of Directors shall be authorized to consider any other CSR activities
which will be permissible under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 or Rules framed thereunder
fiom time to time including any modifications thereto. As far as possible, efforts will be made to co-
ordinate with similar CSR activities that are taken up by the other companies of the Central Govemment
or State Government in those areas.

The CSR projects or proglams or activities that benefit only the employees of the Company and their
families shall not be considered as CSR activities in accordance with the provisions ofthe Companies
Act,2013 and the rules framed thereunder.

3. R_ESOURCES, TDENTTFICATION AND APPROVAI PROCESS

3.1 Resources / Fund allocation

The time when cSR would be applicable to the company or as decided from time to time by cSR
Committee or Board, the company for achieving its CSR objectives through implementation of
meaningful and sustainable CSR programs, will allocate / earmark, in every financial yeat at least
2% (two per cent) of the average net profits of the Company made during the three immediate
preceding financial years, as its CSR Budget for the year. The average net profit shall be qalculated in
accordance with the provisions ofSection 198 of the Compaaies Act, 2013.

Any unspent / unutilised CSR allocation of a particular year will be carried forward to the followins
year, i.e., the CSR budget will be non-lapsable in nature.

3.2 Identificafion Process

Identification of programs at corporate and unit Level will be done by means of the followrng:

i) Need identification studies by extemal agencies / institutions.

ii) Internal need assessment by cross-functional team.

iii) Receipt ofproposals&equests from District Administration/local Golt. etc.

iv) Discussions and request with local representatives/Civic bodies/Citizen's forums/volunrarv
organizations.
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v) Discretion of the CSR Committee and / or the Board of Directors.

3.3 Approval Process

CSR programs as may be identified by the corporate office / manufacturing units will be reqlrired to be
put up to the CSR Committee with recommendations from the proposer at the corporate / unit level.

The programs approved by the CSR Committee would be put before the Board of Directors of the
Company for their approval.

4. MODALITIES OF EXECUTION AND IMPLEMENTATION

4.1 Modalities of Execution

The investment in CSR activities should be project or program based and for every projecL or program,
before execution of the project or program, the modalities of execution and time framed periodic mile-
stones will be finalized.

The CSR activities may be undertaken and / or implemented by:

i) the Company itself under the guidance and supervision of the CSR Committee or Board otiDirectors
or any responsible person authorized in this behalf;

ii) Registered trusts or society or company established by the Company or its holding or subsidiary or
associate company.

iii) Registered trusts or societlz or companies incorporated under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013
or Section 25 ofthe Companies Act, 1956.

iv) Registered trusts or society or company which is not established by the Company or its holding or
subsidiary or associate company having an established track record of three years.

v) Collaboration with other entities allowed to engage in CSR activities.

4.2 Implementation

The time period / duration over which a particular project or program or activity will be spre4d, wi1
depend on its nature, extent of coverage and the intended impact ofthe same.

The projects or programs or activities which involve considerable financial commitmont and a.re
undertaken on a timeframe of2-5 years, will be considered as 'flagship programs' and will be accorded
enhanced significance.

The Company will follow a proje ct / progam / activity based accountability approach to stress on the
long term sustainabilify of CSR activities, where its action plan will be distinguished as ,Short-term,,'

Middle-Term & Long Term; qualified as
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i) Short Term - 6 months to 1 year

ii) Medium Term - 1 year to 2 years

iii) Long Term * 2year and above -'Flagship programs'.

While identifuing long term programs, all efforts must be made to ths extent possible to deftre the
following:

i) Program objectives

ii) Baseline survey - It would give the basis on which the outcome of the program would be measured.

iii) Implementation schedules- Timelines for milestones of the program will need to be presgribed

iv) Responsibilities and authorities

v) Major results expected and measurable outcome

5 MONITORING

To ensure effective implementation of the CSR activities underiaken, a monitoring mechanism will be
put in place by the Corporate HR / Unit HR head. The progress of CSR activities under implpmentation
will be reported to Corporate Offrce on a monthly basis.

The HR department at the Corporate OfIice will conduct impact studies on a periodic basis, {hrough
independent professional third parties / professional institutions, especially on the strategic and high
value programs.

The monitoring team will also try to obtain feedback from beneficiaries about the activities.

Appropriate documentation of the CSR Policy, CSR activities, executing partners, aad experfditure
entailed will be undertaken on a regular basis.

CSR initiatives of the Company will also be reported in the Annual Report of the Company ard the
website ofthe Company in accordance with the statutory provisions.

6 GENERAL

The Surplus arising out ofthe CSR projects or programs or activities shall not form part ofthe business
profit ofthe Company.

In case of any doubt or difficulty with regard to any provision of this policy or implementation ofany
CSR activity and also in respect of matters not covered herein, a reference may be made to the CSR
Committee. In all such matters, the interpretation & decision of the CSR Committee shall be final.

Any or all provisions of the CSR Policy would be subject to revision / amendment in accordance with
the statutory provisions on the subject as may be stipulated by the Govemment, from time ro t1me.
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lndependent Auditor's Report

To the Members of

AVI POLIMERS LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of AVI Polyrners Limited ("the Compary"), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year
then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statement

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act.
2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fiir view oi
the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordaace with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including the Accounting Standards specified under Sectiorrr 133 of tG
AcL read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. fhis responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accotdance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection a;d application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudenq^and design,
implerrentation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls, that were operating effectively ioi
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the prepiration ind presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have taken into
account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be
included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethioal requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable asswance
about whether the financial statements are free fiom material misstatement.

An audit involves perfoming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts ald disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment ofthe
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the
fmancial statements that give a tme and fair view in order to design audit procedures-that are appropriate in the
clrcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an
adequate intemal financial conhols system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such
controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accorurting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's directors, as well as evaluatins the overall
presentation of the financial starements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a trasis for our
audit opinion on the finaacial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the marrnei so requirei and give a true and fair
view in confornity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
company as at March 31,2016, and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirement

1. As required by the Companies ( Auditor's Report) order, 2016 (' the Order') issued by central Govemment
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Aanexure A, a statement on the
matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 ofthe order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report tlat:

a) we have sought aad obtained all the information aad explanations, whioh to the best of our knowledse and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination ofthose books.

c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement ofProfit aad Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with bv this Reoort
are in agreement with the books of account.

d) in orir opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Stanclards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

e) on the basis of the written representations received ffom the directors as on March 3l, Z0l6,takqn on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,2016, from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164(2).

f) with respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness ofsuch controls, refer to our separate report in 'Annexure B'; ind

g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the auditor's report in accord.ance with ru1e l l of the
companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and accordins to
fhe explanations given to us:

(i) The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements

(ii) The company did not have any long term contracts including derivative conhacts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.
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(iii) There are no such amounts which is required to be transferred to the investor education and prdtection fund
by the company and hence the question ofdelay in hansferring the above said amormts does not arige.

Date: - 2lh May,2016
Place: - Ahmedabad

For, S.S. Dasani & Co.
Chartered AccountanK

/r-'e^t^
(Arpit Shah)

Partner
M.No.125043

FRN: 11652lW
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Annexure A to the Auditors' Report

The Annexure to in the independent auditor's Report to the members of the Company on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March, 2016, we report that:

(i) In respect ofFixed Assets:

(a) The company has maintained proper records showing firll particulars, including quartitativg details and
situation of fixed assets.

(b) The frxed assets covering significant values were physically verified by the management as such
intervals, which in our opinion, provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets 4t reasonable
interval having regaxd to the size of the company and nature of its business. Accofding to the
information and explanations given to us by the management, no material disr:repancieg have been
noticed on such verification.

(c) Since the company does not hold any immovable property, hence the question of whether the title
deeds of Immovable properties are held in the name ofthe company does not arise.

(ii) In respect of its Inventory:

(a) As per the information and explanation given to us, the inventory of finished goods wero, during the
year, physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no discrepancies were
noticed on physical verification and hence the question of it been properly dealt with in the books of
accounts does not arise.

(iii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the compa:ry has not granted
any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other (a) Parties listed in the register maintained
under Section 189 of the Companies Act,2013. Consequently, the provisions of clauses iii (b); iii(c) ofthe
order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not given
any loan, made any investment, given any guaruntee, or provided any securities covered under section 185
and 186 of the companies Ac1,2013 during the year except loan to employees as a part of the condition of
service.

(v) To the best of our knowledge, the company has not accepted any deposits covered under section 73 or any
other provisions ofthe companies Act, 2013.

(vi) To the best of our knowledge, central govemment has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records
under section 148(1) of the companies Act, 2013.

(vii) According to Information and explanation given to us, in respect of statutory dues:



(a) The company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed dues including Provident Fund,
Investor Education and Protection Fund, Employees' State Inswance, Income-tax, Sales tax, Wealth
Tax, Seruice Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty and any other statutory dues applicable to it with the
appropriate authorities and there were no undisputed dues in arrears as at 3 l't March , 2016 for a period
of more than six months from the date they become applicable.

(b) The disputed statutory dues aggregating Rs. 104.41 lacs that have not been deposited on account of
disputed matter pending before appropriate authority are as under.
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Name of
status

Nature of
Dues

Amount
Rs. In Lacs

Financial
Year to
which
amount
relates

Forum where
dispute is
pending

Income tax
Act,1961

Tax on
assessment

u/s la3(3)

s.56 1999-2000 Gujarat High
Court
Ahmedabad

Income tax
Act,196l

Tax on
Assessment
u/s 143(3)

98.28 2000-200r ITAT
Ahmedabad

Income tax
AcL1961

Tax on
Assessment
u/s 143(3)

Nil 2006-2007 ITAT
Ahmedabad

Income tax
Act,1961

Tax on
Assessment
u/s 143(3)

0.19 20lI-2012 CIT (Appeals)

Income tax
Act,I961

Tax on
Assessment
n/s 143(3)

0.38 2014-
20ts

ITO

r04.41

(viii) Since the company has not taken any loans or bonowings from financial institution, bank, Govemment or
debenture holders and hence the question whether the company has defaulted in repayment of loans or
borrowings dues to a financial institution, bank, Govemment or debenhre holders does not arise.

(ix) To the best of our knowledge according to the information and explanations given to us, the campany has
not raised moneys by way ofinitial public offer or further public offer (including debt instrument) andterm
loans during the year. Accordingly, para 3(ix) of the Order is not applieable.

(x) Based on the audit procedures performed and ths information and explanations given to us, we report that
no material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reponed during the year, nor we have been informed of such case by the management.

(xi) Since the Company has not paid or provided for any managerial remuneration and hence the question
whether the managerial remuneration has been made in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated
by the provision ofsection 197 read with schedule V ofcompanies Act, 2013 does not arise.
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(xii) To the best of our knowledge according to the information and explaaations given to us, Comirany is not a
Nidhi Comoanv.

(xiii) Since the Company has not entered into any related party transactions and hence the questio4 whether all
transactions with related parties are in compiiance with section 177 and, 188 of the companigs Act,20l3
does not arise.

(xiv) To the best ofour knowledge according to the information and explanations given to us, Company has not
made any preferential allotment of private placement of shares or fully or partly convertibli debentures
,1";-- rh- ',-..

(xv) To the best of our knowledge according to the information and explanations given to us, company has not
entered in to any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.

(xvi) To the best ofou knowledge according to the information and explanations given to us, Coqnpany is not
required to be registered under section 45-IA ofthe Reserve Bank oflndia Act,1934.

Date: - 2/h May,2016
Place: - Ahmedabad

For, S,S. Dasani & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Mr
(Arpit Shah)

Partner
M.No.125043

FRN: 116521W
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Annexure B to the Auditors' Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls unden Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the

Companies 4ct,2013 (6'the Act")

We have audited the intemal financial confols over financial repofiing of AVI Polymers Limited ("the

Company") as of March 31, 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial contlols based on
the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential

components of intemal controi stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and erors, the accuracy and cornBleteness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls over finanqial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemai
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Acq2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of intemal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Intemal Financial Controis and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance 168 Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate intemal financial controls over frnancial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in ail material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the interrral financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an underctanding of intemal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of intemal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financia,l statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's intemal financial conhol over financial reporting is a process designed to providB reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
puposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal fina.ncial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenanoe of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the hansactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of man4gement and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements dug to error or
fiaud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal furancial oontrols over
financial reporting to futrue periods are subject to the risk that the intemal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliaLlrce with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate intemal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such intemal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31,2016, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal conhol stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Date: - 2/h May, 2016
Place: - Ahmedabad

For, S.S. Dasani & Co.
Chartered Accountants

A'vPzi-
(Arpit Shah)

Partner
M.No.125043

FRN: 116521W
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I. EQUIW AND TIABITITIES

(1) Shareholder's Funds
(a) Share capital
(b) Reserves and Surplus

(z) share Application monev pendinq allotment

(3) Current Liabilities
(a) Trade Payables
(b) Short-Term Provisions
(c ) Other Current Liablities

.ASSETS

(1) Non-Current Assets
(a) Fixed Assets

(i) Tangible Assets
(ii) Intangible Assets
(ii) Capital Work in Progress
(ii) Intangible Assets under Development

(b) Non-current investments
(c) Deferred tax assets (net)
(d) Long term loans and advances
(2) Current Assets

{a) lnventories
(b) Trade receivables
(c) Cash and cash equivalents
(d)Short term loans and advances
(d) Other current assets

44,75!,750
(71,87 7,712't

3,66_8

6,200,000

:14,534,445

1,360
'.t!,483 ,230

2,075
577,LO4

BATANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST

LA 7\1 7\
(11,933,25

930,03

LA)

3,66

11,000,00

2,37L,87

14,779,68

t,o04,43
3,994,0L

599,77

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

notes dttached therc to tom an integtul pdtt oJ Bdldnce Sheet

This is the Bdlqnce Sheet rcfered to in ou Report oJ even ddte,

FOR S.S. DASANT & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

A1l;b
(ARPIT SHAH}

M. No. : 125043
F.R.N.:116521W

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 27th May 2016

:r .rV, chqvl.q^,
Dinesh Chauhan (Director)
DIN NO.;0p977893 r, l^

^,**ffi,H'Secretary)
M. No, 37823

Mitesh Meghani (CFO)
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & TOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED ON 31ST

l

IV

Revenue from operations
Other Income

Ill, Total Revenue (l + )
Expenses:

Purchase of Stock in Trade
Freight on purchases

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and
Stock-in-Trade

Employee Benefit Expense

Financial Costs

Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Other Expenses

Total Expenses (lV)

Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax

Exceptional ltems (Prior Period)

Profit before extraordinary items and tax (V - Vl)

Extraordinary ltems

Profit before tax (VII - Vlll)

Tdx expense:

Provision for current tax

Less: l\4AT credit entitlement

Profit(Loss) from the perid from continuing operations

Earning per equity share of face value of Rs. 10

14

15

1,6

17

18

v l

IX

X

XI

xtl

42,368,559

39,851,820

(1,360)

r,706,752

4,972

1-,344,a32

29,934,589

49,O70

849,642

5,775

lo,062

1,540,535

11,800

11,800

L1,4OO

11,400

(rx-x)
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Basic & Diluted

Notes to Accounts
Notes qttqched there to form dn integrul pdrt of profit & Loss Stqtement
This is the Stotement ofptofit & Loss rcfened to in our Repoft oJ even dote.
FOR S.S. DASANT & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

A'*r't-
(ARPIT SHAH)

M. No. : 125043
F.R.N,:116521.W

DIN NO.:001621.50

Dinesh Chauhan (Director) '

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 27th May 2016

DIN NO.:00977893 
\| | [r ^ \nIto4)l co" 4D)/'

Monika Stfi
(Company Secretary)
M. No. 37823

@-
Mitesh Meghani (CFOI
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Notes Forming rntegra! port of the Borance sheet as dt 3rst Morch,2oTG

Note : 7 Share

65,000,000

40,907,OOO

ISSUED , SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP CAPITAL

(i) Share lssued

(ii) Subscribed and fully paid up
{iii)Subscribed and not fully paid up

1516600 Shares were forfeited during the Financial Vear 2014_j.5.

Terms/ Rights attached to equity shares
The company has only one class of euity shares having par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled toone vote per share' In the event of liquidation ofthe company the holder of equity share will be entitied to recerve remaining
assets of the company after distribution of all prefrential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number ofequity shares held by the shareholder.

There were no shares reserved at the year end for issue under options and contracts/ commitments for the sale ot shares/
disinvestment.

RECONCILIATION OF NUMBER OF SHARES OUTSTANDING
Particulars As at 31st March 2016 As at 31sl Mar.h 2nl q

Opening Number of shares Outstanding

Add: Calls received during the year
Add: Shares issued during the year

Less: Share forfeited

Closing Number of outstanding shares

No, of Shares Amount (Rs.)
No. of

Shares Amount

4,O90,700 4O,9O7,OOO s,607,300

1,s16,600

41,,254,500

3,497,250

3,844,750

40,907,OOO4,090,700 40,907,000 4,090,700
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More Than 5% shareholdings Current Year Previous Year

Name No. of Shares %

No. of
Shares %

Swetang Shah 557,500 557,500

Shivarjan Chemicals Pvt. Ltd. 835,600 20.43 835,700 20.43

Mansukh Patel (H UF) 1,141,500 27.90 1,141,s00 27.90

Kamleshkumar K Lalwani 363,099 8.88 281,100 6.87

Mansukh Patel 208,000 5.08 208,000 5.08

Note:2Resetve&

Surplus (Profit & Loss Account)
Balance brought forward from previous year
Add: Profit for the period

Closing Balance

Sundry Creditors for Material
Sundry Creditors for Expense

Other Current Liabilities

Other Liabilities

a. Unpaid Expense

b. statutory Liabilities

c. Advance From Customers
d. Others

782 tI,923
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Note :5 Fixed Asset (Owned Assets)
I. Fixed Assets ot Ahmedabod unit

Tangible Assets

Plant and Equipment

Computer

suB ToTAr (A)

Intansible Assets

suB roTAr (B)

Capital Work-in-
Drogress

suB ToTAr (C)

lntaneible Assets
Under Development

suB roTAr (D)

306

Total [A+B+C+D]
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: 6 Non Current Investment

Trade Investment in Equitv Shares -Unquoted Fullv pai(Lgp
38750(P.Y 68750) Equity Shares of Boscogen biosciencesflndia) Ltd of
Rs 10

INote: 30000 Equity shares of Boscogen biosciences(lndia) Ltd were
sold @ Rs. 148 per share during Financial year 2015_16

6,200,000 11,000,000

Unsecured (Considered Good)
DeDosits

Other Loans & Advances

100,000

14,434,445

100,000

2,27 7,879

Trading Goods-At cost or Market value whichever is lower

Outstandins for more than six months
a) Secured, Considered Good :

b) Unsecured, Considered Good ;

c) Doubtful
Others
a) Secured, Considered Good ;

b) Unsecured, Considered Good:

to,o43,230

r,440,ooo

IO,043,230

4,736,4;3
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Cash-in-Hand

Cash Balance

Balance with Scheduled Bank
Balance with Non Scheduled Co Op Bank
Fixed Deposits (Maturing within j.2 Months)

Cheques on Hand

Total [A + B+C

: 77 Short Term Loons ond Advances

: 72 Other Current Assets

Statuory Advances
lncome Tax receivable
MAT credit entitlement
Advances with VAT Authorlty
Listing Application Fees

98,532
29,82

449440

4J,,427,O59 32,IO3,604
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Closing Stock

Opening Stock

Salary & Wages

Staff Bonus Expenses

Staff Welfare Expenses

989,387

42,OOO

753,O82

30,000

Interest

Bank Charges



I
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I

1

2

3

4

6

7

8

9

10

rL

12

I5

74

15

1,6

I7

18

19

20

Advertisement Exp.

Auditor's Remuneration

Electricity Consumption Exp.

Godown Rent

Internet Expenses

Legal and Professional Expense

Miscellanous Expenses

Mobile Expenses

Office Exp.

Petrol & Diesel

Postage & telegram Exp.

Penalty on TDS

ROC Charges

Sales Promotion Exp.

qi^.L Fv.hrhoa Faa<

Stationery & Printing Exp.

lnterest on TDS &VAT

Loss due to w/off

Long Term Capital Loss for sale of shares

Listing Fees Expenses

Subtotal

139,200

22,L75

18,000

6,390

219,84a

61,088

18,000

54,000

72,9r4

773

16,472

176,266

16,854

45,820

18,000

773,L32

?q ?7q

1,000

22,960

60,560

57,000

ra7

!!,250

4,015

130

1,034,000
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR TIIE YEAR 2015-16

I Cash Flow From Operating
A I Activity

I ProfrV(loss) before Taxes

I 
Adjustments for:

I Depreciation

I Loss Due to wioffl sale ofinvestments

6t543

0

360000

59831

10062

164000

1_rpc[ul Ll(r[ proutloss belore
working
capital changes

Adjustments for changes in
working capital
(Increase)/Decrease in Stock
(lncrease),/Decrease in Sundry debtors
(Increase)/Decrease in Other current
Asset
Increase(Decrease) in Current Liabilites
& Provision
Increase(Decrease) in Short Term
Loans ald Advances

Cash Generated from / (used in)
operations

Taxes (paid/Received

421543

(1360)

3296454

22669

(853s82)

3992000

833893

49070

(44e3es2)

(s74e73)

91s856

(399401s)

6877724

0

(7264121)

0l\et Las|r rr0m/(usgo ln,
Operating activity

CASHFLOWFROM
IN\IESTING ACTIVITIES
(Increase),/Decrease in fi xed assets

(Increase)/Decrease in Investments

Net cash used in Investing
actiyities

CASHFLOWFROM
FINANCIAL ACTI}'ITIES
Unpaid Call Money Received
(Increase),/Decrease in Loans

6877724

0

4440000

(7264121)

0

0

4440000

0
(12r62566'l

6614250
(17260s9)

Net cash lrom linancial activity (r2162s66) | +ssstsr
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Net increase(Decrease) in cash
and cash equivalent

Opening balance of cash and cash
equivalent

Closing balance ofcash and cash

(844842)

1004437

For AVI POL

Mansukh

DIN NO.:00162160

5>.47. cl.tqtkqn

(2375930)

3380367

Notes to Cash Flow Statement
l. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "indirect method,, as set

out in th€ accounting standard-3 on
cash flow statements.
2. Previous year's figures have been reclassified /regrouped wherever considered necessary.
3. Figures in bracket indicate cash
outflow

FOR S,S, DASANI & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

4r
PARTNER
(ARPIT
SIIAII)
M. No. :

125043

F.R N.: U6521W

Place: Ahmedabad
Dzte: 271[512016

Dinesh Chauhan @irector)
DINNO.:00977893 

|,, ^^ lnMpg^^ry'
Monika Shah
(Company Secretary)

M. No. 37823

-'-2&
Mitesh Meghani (Cf,'O)
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Note : 79 Quqntitative Detoits

Chemicals (Kgs)

Chemicals in (MT)

Machine (Nos.)

Textile (Pcs)

Rs.

15,O74,480

360,000

23,948,160

2,02't ,619

Rs.

28,265,819

1,620,975

2,'155,770

0 o.7o
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'J,. Significantaccountingl'olices

(a) Basis of Accounting:
The financial statements are prepared urrder hisLorical cos[ collv(\lfion all(] ()rl lllc b.tsls

of going concern to comply in all rnaterial l€spect witlt Lhe notifitlrl aci:ot'tIr ling

standards issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountatlt of Irrtlia

(b) Use of Estimates
Tl1e preparaLion of financial statements is in conformitv witlr (lt:ncralh' r\r-r'optccl

Accounting Principle which lequirc esLimates ancl assumprions to bc mtltlc llrat aflcct

tire rep6rted amounts of assets and liabilitics and djsclosurc of continlpnt liabililT on

the date of financial staterncnts and thc reportod ;rmortnts oI tt'r't'nLtes (rutl ( \lrL'ns(]s

during the reporhng period. Achral results coulcl cliffcr' lronr tlris t'sl.ir)rakr .rrrtl

differences befween achlal resu'lts ancl esrimatcs are recog.izecl Lr the irtt'iotl i' n'hich

the results are known / materialize

(c) Fixed Assets:
Fixed Assets are stated at cost lcss accumulated clcprcciahion. Ihc cosL ol lixcel .rsscl

comprise of its purchase pricc and anv diroctlv ath'ibutable cost of blirlgirrll thf.issels lll

an operational condition for its intended use.

(d) Depreciation:
Deireciation has been provided at the rates and in the rnatrner presct'ibed in Schorlult'II

of the Companies act,2013 on WDV Method. Dcpreciation olr atlclition or'()tr sale/

disposal of assets is calculatecl pro-rata flotn thc datc of suclr adclitiori o[ salc/ disposal

as dre case may be.

(c) Valuation of Invenlories:
Inventory of goocis are valuecl at Cost or N{arkct Pricc u,'hichcvcr is lt>t{t'r.

(f) Investment:
Long tel.m investments are stated at cost. Provisitltr of diminution in thc Valrte Ol I-olr9,

term invesbments is made only if such decline is oLhcr tl.rarr telnPorar'\' in traliurc in tht'

opinion of the Management.

(g) Revenue Recogni tion:
(i)Revenue is iecognized to the cxtent that is probablc thalt thr:

flolv to the Company ancl the revetruc call be rcliably ntoasurctl

cc<; rrotn ic bttrlcl.ils l|ill

(ii)Revenuefromsaleofgoodsislecogr.rizeclwlrentlresigrrificantr.isksan.-ll.(.r^'.]t.LlsLlI
ownershipoftlregoodsarch.ansferrecltOtl]L-Customctancliss|.a|cc|n(ltt'fh.a,.lcl
cliscounts, excise clutl', salcs rcturtr, r'aluc added tax, clai[ls otc
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(iii) Revenue is recognized on a time proportion basis takinll into accour.lI the nrnou].lL
outstanding and the applicable rate of intcrest.

(h) Employee Benefirs:
The amount of short-term- employ,ec borcfit.s cxl.rcctr:cl to bc pai(l in cxcltaltllc for tht,
serwices renderecl by emproyees are recognizecr as an expense clurirrg tJrs 1r",1i,,.r *,h"n
the employees render the seryices. Furtrrer, the Co'npany crocs not h0.," nn" p.ric' ofproviding post-employment_benefits to any of its ernproyec and hcnr:r' ,nn piuu,ri.,'' ,,i
such expenses is not required to be macle in the fir.rancial ,statemctrts.

lI, I aJ(atron:
Current tax is cletermined as the amount of tax payatrlc irl rcspcct of taxablo iprrrrrrc lirrthe period. Defelred tax is recognizccl subjeci io thc consicluration el: p,.u,l,.,rcc in
respect of deferred tax assets on timing cliffeler.rces, br:ing tho cliffe,rcncg l.,.,lr'*,rr L1r,
taxable incomes and accounting income that oliginatr: in, onc per.ioci ancr ar.r'r:apabro oi. reversal in one or more subsequent period.

Deferred tax assets are recognized ancl carried forwarcl only Lo thc extort that tirt r0 rs ;r
reasonable certainty that sufficierrt future taxable in<:onrc r,r,ill bc available aqainst \,\. jrir:h
such deferred tax assets can be rcalizeci.

(j) Provisions, Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities:
Conringent Liabilities as defined in Accounting Stanrlarcl 29 on "pr.ovisions, (ionting.nt
Liabilities and Contingent Assets,, ar.e disclosecl by way ol notcs kr LItt, atr.orrnr.
Provision is rnacle if it is probablc that alr outflor^,nf f,.r tr,r.r: cc-onorric bonciits r.vill Lrt:
required for an item prcviously dealt l,r,ith as a contingcnt tiabilitr,.

(k) I'urchase & Expenses :

(i) The major item of expenses are accountcd for on hmc pro rata l.rasis antl lr(\..()sszrrv
provision for the same are made.

(ii) Purcliases are accounted at invoice valuc. Thc other componcrrts likc frcight, oclroi,
Lransport clrarges arc shown sepat'atcly, Rcbatc antl cliscount rcccivcci 9r.r purr.lrlsl ;rr.t:
netted of from purchases.

(l) Impairment of Assets :

The management of lhe Company' is of the opirriorr that thr:rer arc 1o Fixctl .,\ss(,[s tr) lr(,
impaired for tl-re period, as identified by thc sources of inl'onlation, nreptior.ro(l i1 th(,
Accounting Standard-28 ,,Impairment of Asscts ,'issuecl by thc ICAI.

(m) Balances of Debtors and Creditors arc subjcct to corrfirntation to [rc obtairrscl. Irr tht:
opinion of the boarcl, current assets, loarrs and aclvant-e's lravc r,;rlut.orr r.cerlization in tht,
ordinary course of business at lcast equal to tht aDrount at r.",h ic-h lht-.y ar.rr sLtlo(1. Ih(,
provision for other known liabilitics is aclcquate ancl not irr cxcoss of u,lrat is r.t.c1uir.t,tl.



iii i i' j:,
(n) Previous year's figures have been regrouped or rearr.anged wher.vr:r roqrrir.err to b.made for better prese'tation of fina.cial .stut"-er.'t". Figurc,s arc rou'clt,rl ofl k) th(lnearest rupee.

(o) Earnings per Share:

The Company reports basic & ctilutect ear.i'gs per srrar.c in ar:corcra,.ct, withAccounting standard 20, "Eaming per Srrare" issued uy tho ICAI. Basir: carnirrg pr.r.share is cornputed by dividing the net profit after tax avarlablc to.quih.slrar,, ,hrlt':rs
by the weighted average'umber of ,:quify shares ou[.stal]cli.g clurilrg t'. \,c;rr.

(p) Segment Reportingi

The Company has only one segment of activity, namcly kaeiing.

AVI POLYMERS LIMITED



, NOTES FORMING PART OF ACCOUN'I"S

(a) As per the information and explanafion
policy of providilg post employment benefits
for reLirement benefits.

(b) Contingent Liabilities

(c) Particulars of payment made to f)irectors :

giverr to us the Cornpant'
and horcc rro plovision is

clor:s not havc llrc
nraclc for lia lriliLies

Parliculars

Remuneration
Remuneration to Auditor:
Particulals

Statutory Audit Fees

Service Tax Reimbursement

Total

2015-16

Amdunt (Rs.)

Nil

2015-16

Amount (Rs.)

15,000

2,175

17,'t75

2014-1.5

Amount (Rs.)

Nil

2014-15

Amount (ills.)

15,000

1,t354

16,85,1

AVI POLYMERS LIMITED

Name of
status

Nature of
Dues

Amount Rs.

ln Lacs

Fin an cial

Year to
which
amount
relates

Forum where
dispute is

pend ing

lncome tax
Act,1961

Tax on
assessmenl
u/s 1a3{3)

5.5 6 1999-2000 Gujarat HiBh

Cou rl
Ahm{rdabad

lncome tax
Act,1961

Tax rin
Assessment

u/s 143{3)

98.28 2000-2001 ITAT

Ahmedabad

Income tax
Act,1961

Tax on
Assessment
u/s 143 (3)

Nil 2006-2007 ITAT

Ahm0dabad

Income lax
Act,1961

Tax on
Assessment
u/s 143(3)

0.19 207r-20t2 CIT {Appeals)

lncome tax
Act,1961

Tax on
A5sessment
u/s 143(3)

0.3 8 201,2-2013 rTo

104.41



(d)The balances shown in the Balnpce sheet unticr'thc hcacl

Loans arrd Advances are each sulrjcct to con tifl]ra tirrlr fronr
subject to adjustment, if any, on rece ipt of confirmaLion.

';\i:;-:,.

of Crcclitors, I)cb tors ancl

lcs1.rt,clivt,partics nnd .r r('

(e)The Company has noi receiv,ecl any iutination from Supplir,r's lc1laldirrr,, llrcir
status under Micro and Meciiunr Entcrprises l)cvcloprlent Act, 2006 anrl horrr:c

disclosurc , if arry, lelating to arrounts unpaicl as at vcal t,ncl kri;ollrer' r^ ith ir.rlor'('sl,

paid/payable as required under thc saicl A<'t havc not l.rcolt f',ivcrr.

(f)The Figures for the previous year have bccrr rcarrarngccl anci rt'1;roupccl 11,11q'1'q'1 1'1'

consiclered necessary so as to confirm to thc currcnl yc;rl r:lassil:icatiorr.

(g) 'Ihe amount remitted during lJre year in foreigr curlcnt:ics ()n account {)1

dividend is Rs. NIL
-C.I.F. Value of Imports is Rs. NII..
-Eanings in Foreign Exchange is (FOB) is NII,

(h) The amounts have been roundecl off nc;ut st Rupec.,.

AS PER OUR REPORT OI-' EVEN DATE A]TACIJEI)

FOII. S.S. DASANI AND C--O. ]FOR, AVI POI,YMERS I,IMI'I'F]I)
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

*-nj,v't
(ARPIT SHAH)
PARTNER

M. No.: 125043

FIRM Reg. No.116521W

& M.D.)
DTN NO.:00162160

--tr--.,V' CL^.q''aL\n"l

Dinesh Chauhan {Director)
IDIN NO.: 00977893 .tn$"^+^-ry
Monika Shah

(ConU)anv Secretaryl
M. No. 37823

'---'a-BE:a
Mrlpcb,Msgbiu!1e FQ)

Place: Ahmedabad
Datet 27/05/2016

AVI POLYMERS LIMITED
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l

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Sr.
No

Name of Directors Designation Board
Meeting
Attended

Attondance
at
Last AGM

No. of
Director-
ships
In the other
public
Companies

1

No. of
Chairman-
ship
Member-
ship of
board
/committee
in other
CompaniesShri Mansukh Patel

I Managing Director
l

Promoter and
Executive

16 Yes Nil

2 Shri Maulik
Pradipkumar Shah

Non
Executive and
Independent

I6 Yes Nil Nil

3 Shd Dinesh
Chauhan

Non
Executive and
Independent

16 Yes Nil Nil

4 Shri Jayesh Dave* Non
Executive and
Independent

1t No Nil Nil

5 Monika Shah** Executive
Dhector

l6 Yes Nil Nil

The company's philosophy is to conduct its affairs in a manner which is fansparent, clear and evident to thosedealing with or having a stake in the company namely shareholders, lenders, creditors and employees. Thecompany's philosophy on corporate Governance is thus concemed with th€ ethics and values ofthe Company and itsDirectors, who are expected to act in the best interest of the company and remain accormtable to shaxe holders andother beneficiaries for their actiol.

The company is cornmitted to provide high quality product and. services to its customers and stakeholders, becausethe company believes that its long-term survival is entirery dependent on good corporate governance.

BOARD OFDIRECTORS:

The present sffength ofthe Board of Directors is 5(Five).

Attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings and rast Annuar General Meetine :
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* Appointed as Non - Executive and Independent director with effect from 2gth August, 2015.

** Regularize from Additional Director to Executive Director with effect from 286 August, 2015.

None ofthe Directors of the Company are related to each other in any way.

Sixteen Board meetings were held during the year. The dates ofBoard meeting are

29/05/2015, 1410612015, 13/07/2015,2410712015, 13t8/20t5, 03/09/20t5, 30togt20t5, 05/1r/20ts,23/11/2015.
27/1!2015,28/1112015, 07 /12/20t5, 14t12/2015, l2/02/2016, 08/03/2016,28/03/2016

The information required to be given for the Directors seeking reappointment at the 23'd Amual General Meeting
as per Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
("SEBI Listing Regulations")will be provided in the notice ofthe 23'd annual general meeting.

Independent Directors' Meeting

During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on September 25, 2015, inter alia, to discuss:

r Evaluation ofperformance ofNon Independent Directors and the Board ofDirectors as a whole.

o Evaluation ofperformance of the Chairman of the company, taking into account the views ofthe Executive
and Non Executive Directors.

o Evaluation of the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the Maragement and the
Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties.

Mr. Maulik Shah was appointed as a chairman for the meeting of Independent dhectors.

All the Independent Directors were present at the meeting.

REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS :

No remuneration is paid to any Directors ofthe Company.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has devised criteria for evaluation of the perfbrmance of
the Directors including Independent Directors. The said criteria provide certain parameters iike attendance,
effective participation, and domain knowledge and so on, which are considered by the Committee and/or
the Board while evaluating the performance of each Director.

BOARD COMMITTEES :

The Company is following the procedures and practices in conformity with the code of corporate govemance rn
keeping with the spirit ofthe code. The board has constituted the following committees:



AVI POLYMERS LIMITED 28tS-t6
A. AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Audit Committee acts as a link between the statutory and internal auditors and. the Board of Diroctors. Its
purpose is to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities of monitoring financial reportrng processes,
reviewing the Company's established systems and processes for intemal financial controls, govemance and
reviewing the Company's statutory and internal audit activities. The Committee is governed by a Charter which is in
line with the regulatory requfuements mandated by the companies Act, 2013 and. Regulation lg of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Board of Directors of the company has constituted an audit commrfiee pusuant to the provisions of Section 177
of the companies Act' 2013 to ensure fu1l compliance will all the relevant provisions inciuding code of corporate
SOvemance.

The Audit committee is comprising of 3 (thee) members composed of Shri Dinesh chauhan ( Chairman ), shri
Mansukh Patel and Shri Maulik P. Shah and company Secretary act as a secretary of committee. The members ofthe committee are having filancial and accounting knowledge. The committee caries out functions enumerated in
the listing agreement and section 17j of the Companies Ac| 2013.

Pursuant to the provision of section 177 of the companies Act, 201,3 and in accordance with the Regulation lg of
sEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 your company has constituted an
audit committee. The power of the audit committee, terms of reference a,'d role of the audrt committee are in
conformity with the provision of Section 177 of the companies Act,2ol3 and Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Reguiations, 2015.

During the year under the review, 5 audit committee meetings were held. All the Members attended the audit
committee meetings.

Representatives of auditors are invited from time to time dependrng upon the requirement of the committee to attend
tne meetms.

The Minutes of the Audit committee are placed before the next Board Meeting. All the recommendations of the audit
commtttee were accepted by the Board.

The chairman of the Audit committee was present at the 23'd Annual General Meeting of the company to answer
shareholders query.

During the year under the review, the audit committee met 5 times during the year 2015-16 on 2g/05/2015,
24/07/2015' 1310812015'03/09/2015,05/11/2015 and, 12/02/2016. All the -"-b"., were presenr at the committee
meeting.

n) Powers of Audit Committee

The audit committee shall have following powers:

l. to investigate any activity within its terms ofreferencc.

ii. to seek information from any employee.
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b)

iii. to obtain outside legal or other professional advice

Iv' to secue attendance of outsiders with rerevant expertise, if it considers necessary.

RoIe of Audit Committee

The role ofthe audit committee shall include the following:

oversight of the company's 
*T:tll:ryfitry- process and the disclosure of its financial infbrmation toensure that the financial statement ls correct, sufficient and credible.

[:""xffif.,1J13if":ppointment 
and removal of auditor, fixarion of audit fee and atso approval for payment

ffiilffiJt- 
management the annual financial statements before submission to the board, focusing

a Any changes in accounting policies and practices.i Major accounting entries based oo 
"""r"i." of;uJg_ent by management.r Qualifications in draft auort report.I Significant adjustments arising out ofaudit.t The going concem asslunpuon.

I Compliance with accountlng standards.i compliance with stock exctrange and legal requirements conceming financial statementsr Any related party transactions i.". trunJu"tion. oi,h;;-p.lry of material nature, with promoters or
:nffi:ilTli{::ir subsidiaries o"*rutiu", 

"rcliui mav have potentar 
"""niit,"iii tr,e interests

Reviewing with the management, Auditors of the company, and the adequacy of intemal control systems.

Reviewing the adequacv of intemal audit fimction, including the structure of the intemal audit department,
il?$l,li:lff"'"rirv 

oi trre orrciar h"uaing tl"';;"'*Ji,;o*ing structure coverase and frequency or

Reviewing with the managemenl the statement of us€s / application of funds raised through an issue (rublicrssue' rights issue' preferential issue )etc the .tut"**nt ot filid, irtilized for purpose other tian those stated inprospectus / offer document / 
. 
notice and the report sJ-in"o by monitoring agency monltofing the

L1l.J1lJn".i*f",f:S.l,JJt" or rights issue "'iJ#;;;;-priate recomm-end-atioo, toln. Board to

ffil;m;:tl*rT#T,1iT:l""t"""rt"x"raudit cornmences nat*e and scope of audit as well as has post-

l.

11l.

v1.

iv.

vllr. Reviewing the company,s financial and. risk management policies.
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c)

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of nonpayment ofdeclared dividends) and creditors.

Review of information by Audit Committee

Management Discussion and analysis of financial condition and result ofoperations.

Statement of Significant related party transaction submitted by Management.

Management Letters/Letters of Intemal Control weakness issued by the Statutory Auditors.

The appointment removal and terms of remuneration of the Intemal Auditor shall be subject to review by the
Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee held discussions with the Auditors of the company concerning the financial reports of the
company, internal control systems, and scope of audit and observations of the auditors. The Audit Cornmittee also
reviewed the quafterly, half-yearly and annual financial results of the company before submission to the Board., on
the "Limited review" of the quarterly accounts, matters relating to compliance of Accounting Standards, their
observations arising from the InternaV Annual Audit ofthe Cornpany's accounts and other related maners.

No bonus shares and stock options are issued to any ofthe directors

B. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

In compliance of Section 178 of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBi (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Board renamed the Remr.rneration committee as
"Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Your Board has rc-constituted the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee which now comprises Of Shri Dinesh Chauhan and Maulik P. Shah and Ms. Monika Shah til1
3010912015 and Mr. Jayesh Dave from 30/09/2015.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has framed the Nomination and Remuneration Policy. A copy of
the policy is appended as "Annexure l" to the Corporate Govemance Report.

The Committee met on 21/0812015 and,0310912015 during the financial year ended 31" March, 2016. All the
members were present at the Committee Meeting.

C. STAKEHOLDERS' GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE

In compliance with the provisions of Regulation 20 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Rsquirements)
Regulations, 2015 and, Section 178 of Companies Act, 2013, your company re-constituted this committee as

"Stakeholders Relationship Committee". This committee of the Board of your Company looks into various issues
relating to shareholders/investors including transfer and transmission of shares held by shareholders in physical
format as well as non-receipt of dividend, Annual Report, shares after transfer and delays in transfer of shares. The
committee also looks into issues including status of dematerializationhematerialization of shares and issue of
duplicate share certificates and tracks investor complaints and suggest measures for improvement from time to time.

lv.
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The committee comprises of Shri Dinesh Chauhan( Chairman ), Shri Mansukh patel and Ms. Monika Shah from till
30/0912015 and vh' Jayesh Dave flom 3010912015. During the year und.er review the committee met once on30/09/2015 on various matters refered above. During the year zerc complaints were received. As on 3lst March,
2016 no complaints remained unattended/pending. The company has no share transfers/transmissron pending as on3lstMarch,2016.

6. Name and Designation of Comnanv Secretary and leglmpliance Officer:

Ms Monika Shah Company Secretary and compliance Officer has been appointed under Section 203 of the
companies Act,2013 as a Key managerial personnel, Company Secretary and Compliance officer. she takes careof all legal compliances of the Company from time to time.

7. Familiarization Proqramme for Indenendent Direcjers.

The Independent Directors are provided with necessary documents, reports and policies to enable them tofamiliarize with the company's procedures and practices.

Tj::,i.^:::::1 lTl*ll^*i 
programme^for.rndependent direcrors are posted on the website of the company

and can be accessed at

Listing Agreement

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), on 2nd September, 2015 issued SEBI (Listing obligations andDisclosure Requirements) Regulations,2O 1 5. The said regulations were effective from 1* December,20'5.
Accordingly, all listed entities were required to enter in to Listing Agreement within six months liom the date ofissue' The company entered into Listing Agreement with BSE Limited and Ahmedabad Stock Exchange Limitedduring February, 2016.

9. Policies

The company has adopted the policies in line with new governance requirements including the policy on RelatedParty Transactions, Policy on Preservation of Documents, policy for Determination 1f Material Event orInformation etc company has also adopted code of conduct to Regulate, Monitor and R€porting of rrading byInsiders. These policies are availabre on the website of the company at www.aviolymers.com.

IO. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

A) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM):

The last three annual General Meetings were held as under:

Wednesday, 14

August,2013
At Registered office of the
Company situated at Ambica
Compound Old H B RoadRanchi
834 001

2013-t4 11.00 a.m. At Registered office of the
Company situatecl at Ambica
Compound Old H B RoadRanchi
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20r4-15 D;,{^.,

August,2015
At Registered office of the
Company situated at Ambica
Compound Old FI B Road Ranchi
834 001

The company has not passed any special resolution during the rast three annual general meetings.

B) EXTRA ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING @GNO:

During the financial year 20r4-r5, the company passed the fo owing resolutions by postal ballot.

Special Resolutions Vot€s cast in favor

declaration of
results

Approval for Change in Obj-t March27,2015

March 27 ,201 5

To ilcrease Iimit of eorrowing March 27 ,201 5

Ordinary Resolutions Votes cast in fayor

declaration of
results

Appointment of Statutory
Auditor to fil1 casual vacancy

March27,2015

The company successfully completed the process of obtaining approval of its shareholders for special resolution onthe items detailed above, vide postal ballot. The company also conducted a postal ballot in March, 2015 seekingshareholder's approval, pertaining to appointment of statutory Auditor to fill casual vacancy by way ofpostal ballotpassed as ordinary resolution.

Mr' Alkesh Jalan, Practicing company secretary was appointed as the scrutinizer for carrying out the postal ballotprocess in a fair and transparent manner.
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Postal Ballot during the year

During the fiscal 2016, the company has not passed any resolutions by postal ballot

8. gqDE ergqNDUC'I

The Board of Directors has already adopted the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct for the Directors and
Senior Management persorurel. This code is a comprehensive code applicable to all Directors, Executive as well
as Non - executive and members of the Senior Management. The Code has been circulated to all the members
of the Board and Senior Management Personnel and compliance of the same has been a{firmed by them. A
deciaration given by the Managing Director and CEO is given below:

The Company has obtained from all the members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel of the Company,

affirmation that they have complied with ihe Code of Ethics and Business Conduct framed for Directors and Senior

Management Personnel in respect ofthe financial year 2015-16."

The company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate trading in
securities by the Directors and designated employees of the Company and can be acc€ssed at

http :l/avipolymers.com/sample-page/code-of-conduct-policv/

We comply with SEBI's guidelines of Corporate Governance. We have documented our Intemal Policies on Corpomte

Govemance. We have also adopted blower Policy on Corporate Govemance and can be accessed at

http://avipolymers.c

9, GENERALSHAEHOLDERINFORMATION :

(i) Amual General Meeting

Date, Time and Venue

Monday 26* September,2016 at 11.00 a.m.

at the Registered Office of the company at

Ambica Compound Old H B RoadRanchi

834 001.

(it Financial Calendar Year l"' April, 2015 to 3ls' March.20l6

(iii) Date ofBook Closure 22'd September, 2016 to 26thseptember, 2016

(both days inciusive).

(iv) Dividend Payment Date Not Applicable

(vJ Registered Office Ambica Compound O1d H B RoadRanchi

834 001

(vi) Plant Locations Not applicable

(vii) Investor Correspondence AVI Polymers Limited

Ambica Compound O1d H B RoadRanchi
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834 001

(viii) Means of Communication The Quarlerly Results of the Company are

published in one English Newspaper

circulating in the whole or substantially the

whole of India and in one daily newspaper
published in the language of the Region
where the registered olfice of the company is
situated and are also displayed in Company's
website www.avinolvmers.com

(ix) Any Website where it displays
official releases

The Company's website

www.avipolymers.com contains a separate

dedicated section "Investor Relations" where
all financial and other information is

available.

tx, Any presentation made to the

institutional investor and analyst

No

(xi) Whether Management Discussion
and Alalysis is a part of this report

Yes

(xii) Share Transfer System Transfer of shares is done within a period of
15 days from the date of the receipt, subject

to the documents being valid and complete in
a1l resoect.

(xiii) Listing and Stock Code BSE Limited-539288

Ahmedabad Stock Exchange - 06714

Listing fees as applicable have been paid

(xiv) The name and address of Stock

Exchanges where Company is listed

BSE Limited,

P J Towers,

Dalal Street,

Mumbai -400001

The Ahmedabad Stock Exchange,

1" Floor, Kamdhenu Complex,

Panjara Po1e, Ambawadi,

Ahmedabad - 380 015

Market Price Data Since the shares of the Company are not

actively traded on the stock exchange, market
price of the shares is not available to the
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Company

Performance of the share price of
the Company in comparison to the

BSE Sensex:

Since the shares of the Company are not
actively traded on the stock exchange,

Performance of the share pdce of the

Company in comparison to the BSE Sensex

is not available to the Comoanv

(xrr) Company secretary and
Compliance Officer

Ms. Monika Shah

(xvi) Email for investors correspondence

/ Complaints
avipolvmer@qmail.com

(xvii) ISIN INE897N01014

(xviii) Demat Shares Held in NSDL - 3153700

Held in CDSL-692300

Physical Mode- 244700

(xix) Registrar and Transfer Agent MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited
12 I 1 I 5, Matohar pukur Road,

Kolkata-700026

Tel: 033 -40724051 / 521 53

Fax:033-40724050

Subsidiary Company: The Company does not have any subsidiary company.

IO. FINANCIAL CALENDER:

Report Period : ls'April,2016 to 31't March,20l7

Filst Quafter Result : Latest by Second Week of August, 2016

( tentative )

Half Quarter Result : Latest by Second Week ofNovember 2016

( tentative )

Third Quarter Result : Latest by Second Week of February 201.1

( tentative )

Fourth Quarter Result : Latest by Fourth Week of May, 2017

(tentative ).
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11. STTARE HOLDTNG PATTERN (AS ON 31-03-2016):

(a) Categories of Shareholders:

Cateqorv No. of
Holclers

No. of
Shares

V" of
holding to
total

Prornoters Holding including Bodies

Corporate of Promoters

04 1735500 42.43

Residential Individuals 261 1s 19600 37.r4

Mutual Funds 0 0 0

Banks, FIs, Insurance Companies 0 0 0

Domestic Companies, Bodies Corporate 1 835600 20.43

Clearing Members 0 0 0

Total: 266 4090700 100.00

(b) Distribution of Shareholding as on March3l,20l6

Shareholding of Nominal Value of Shareholders Share Amount

From Rs. To Rs. Number % of Total
No.

In Rs. % to total

Amount

0 5000 192 72.18 478070 1.17

5001 10000 20 7.52 196000 0.48

10001 20000 25 9.40 482000 1.18

20001 30000 o 2.26 160000 0.39

30001 40000 o 3.00 320000 0.78

40001 50000 0 0.00 0.00

50001 100000 0 0.00 0 0.00

100001 Above tc 5.64 39270930 96.00

Total 266 100 40907000 100
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l. Industry Structure and developments.

Textile & Textile Chemical Industry:

India is the world's second largest producer of textiles and garments. Abundant availabilify of raw
materials such as cotton, wool, silk and jute and skilled workforce have made India a sogrcing hub. The
size oflndian textile and apparel market stood at US$ 89 billion in 20i I and is expected to touch USg 221
billion by 2020. The industry is set for strong growth, buoyed by both strong domestic consumption as
well as expolt demand. The organized apparel segment is expected to grow at a CAGR of more than 13
per cent over a lO-year period creating enonnous opporhrnities. Apparel constitutes a large share in the
ovsrall sector, accounting for 69 per cent tn 2012 while textile contributed 31 per cent to the total market
share. The total oxpofts of textile and apparel sector flom India grew to US$ 33.3 billion in Fyl2 from
US$ 17.6 billion in FY06, implying a compounded annual growth rate (CAGR) of 11.2 per cent. The
exports are expected to increase further to US$ 82 billion by 2021.h rate (CAGR) of 11.2 per cent. The
exports are expected to increase firrther to US$ g2 billion by 202I.

With Asia's growing contribution to the global chemical industry, India emerges as one ofthe tbcus destinations for
chemical companies worldwide. With the current size of approximately $108 biliion, the Indian chemical industry
accounts for -3o/o of the global chemical industry. Two distinct scenarios for the future emerge, based on how
effectively the industry leverages its strengths and manages challenges. In the base case scenano, with cunent
initiatives of industry & govemment, the Indian chemical industry could grow aI 11%o p.a. to reach size of $224
billion by 2017. However' the industry could aspire to grow much more and its growth potential is limited only by
its aspirations. In such an optimistic scenario, high end-use demand based on increasiog p". capital consumption,
improved export competitiveness and resultant growth impact for each sub-sector of the chemical industry could
lead to an overall growth mte of over 15olo p.a. and a size of $290 billion by 20Ii (-6% of global industry). This has
a potential for further upside in the future considering India's increasing competitiveness in manutbcturins.

2. Opportunities and Threats

Opportunities

. Abundant raw material

. Low cost skilied labour

. Presence across the value chain

. Growing domestic market

. Strong backward integratron

. Third largest cotton producer as well a the largest area under cultivation

. Increasing presence across entire value chain

. Cheap and skilled manpower
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. Sharp reduction in borrowing costs

. Recent government efforts to promote the industry.

Threats

. Fragmented industry

. Effect of historical govemment policies

. Lower productivity and cost competitiveness

. Tech obsolescence. Quality is not consistent

. Low level of training.

' The export-import policy of India changes too frequently due to which it becomes very difficult for
importers to impoft goods.

. Delay in delivering the goods at the right time.

. Lack of economies ofscale and advance processing capabilities.

3. Segment -wise or product-wise performance :

The Company operates in a single segment of activity viz. trading and hence the segment reporting is not
applicable to the Company.

Outlook

The outlook for the coming year 2016-17 looks promising for the Chemicals business at this point in time.
Demand is showing signs of improvement and with a price advantage due to our best negotiation abilities
we are likely to perform we1l. However, globa1 recession and market condition may have an impact on our
business to suffer which in tum can have bearing on profitability.

Risks and Concerns

Your Company had put a risk management framework in place post a comprehensive review of its risk
management process. Your Company takes a fresh look at the risk management framework through our
Audit Committee at least once in a year. The review involved understanding the existing risk
maragement initiatives and assessment of risks in the businesses as the relative control measures and
arriving at the desired counter measures keeping in mind the risk appetite ofthe organization. The audit
Committee has periodically reviewed the risks in the business and recommended appropriate risk
mitigating actions.

The business of the Company is likely to be affected by various internal and extemal risks enumerated
as under:

. Our Company does not have adequate Cash flows. Low Cash flow could adversely impact our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

4.

J.
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6.

our operations are significantly located in the Ahmedabad Region and failure to expand our
operations may restrict our growth and adversely affect our business

Our success depends largely upon the services of our Promoter, Directors and other key
managerial personnel and our abili| y to attract arrd retain them.

The prices we are able to obtain for the products that we trade depend largely on prevailing
market prices.

We face intense competition irt our businesses, which may limit our grol',th and prospects.

Global economic, political and social conditions may harm our ability to do business, increase
our costs and negatively affect our stock price.

Global recession and market conditions could cause our business to suffer.

Natwal calamities and changing weather conditions caused as a result of global warming could
have a negative impact on the Indian economy and consequently impact our business and
profitability.

Tax rates applicable to our compaay may increase and may have an adverse impact on our
business.

o Political instability or changes in the Govemment could adversely affect econornic conditions in
India generally and our business in particular.

As a responsible employer, to ensure occupational safety and employment standards, your Company maintains
strict safety and quality control programs to monitor and control these operational risks.

Internal Control System and their adequacy

The Company maintains adequate intemal control systems, which provides, among other things,
reasonable assurance of recording the transactions of its operations in all material respects and of
providing protection against significant misuse or loss ofcompany's assets.

Intemal Controls are adequately supported by intemal audit and periodical review of by the management.
The audit committee meets periodically to review with the management and statutory airditorc, financial
statements. The Audit Committee also meets with the internal auditors to review adequacy /scope of
intemal audit function, significant findings and follow up thereon and finding of abnormal nature.

Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance.

During the year company has reported total income of Rs.423.69 lacs as against total revenue of Rs.

324.49 lacs in the previous yeax, Net Profit of the Company during the Current year stand at Rs.0.62 lacs
as against profit ofRs. 0.60 lacs in the previous year.

1
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9.

Material developments in human resources/ Industrial Relations fronto including number of people

employed.

Relations with the employees of the Company at various levels remained harmonial during the year under

the revi.ew. The Company is making its best efforts to retain and altract talented employees. During the

year under the review, the Company has complied with all legislative provisions of labour laws. The
number of employees of the company as of 31" March ,2016 was 6.

Other Disclosures:

a. Basis of related party transaction:

During the year under the review, there were no related party transactions.

b. Disclosure of AccountiDg treatments:

The Company has followed all relevant Accounting Standards while preparing the financial
Statemetrts.

c, Board Disclosures - Risk Management:

The Company has developed comprehensive risk management policy and same is reviewed by
the Audit Committee, which in turn, informs the Board about the risk assessment and
minimization procedures. Major risks identified for the Company by the management are

Currency fluctuation, Compliance, Regulatory changes, Manufacturing & Supply, Litigation,
Information Technology and new capital investments return. The management is however, of the
view that none of the above risks may threaten the existence of the Company as robust Risk
mitigation mechadsm is put in place to ensue that there is nil or minimum impact on the
Company in case aly of these risks materialize. Since the risk control frame work is new to
Indian Corporate Culture, it is being stengthened on continuous basis using the outside
professional help.

Proceeds from public issues, right issues, preferential issues etc:

Not applicable, as no capital has been raised by the Company in last 5 Years.

Besides above, there was no instance of Non-compliance of any matter related to the capital markets

during the last three yea$.

By Order ofthe Board
For, AVI

Date:21105/2016

Place: Ahmedabad Chairman and Director
DIN: 00]t62160



DECTARATION REGARDING COMPTIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNET VVITH THE COMPANY'S CODE OF CONDUCT

In accordance with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,20i5, I hereby
confirm and declare that, all the Directors and Senior Management personnel ofthe iompany have affirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct of the company laid down foi them, for the financial year ended 31",March,20l6.

AVI POLYMERS LIMITED 28tS-L6

For, A\lI

Chairnan Director

DaIe: 27 /05/2016
Place: Ahmedabad

,<"Y i14A\
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DIN: 00162160
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CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION:

To'
The Board of Directors of
AVI POLYMERS limited

(a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement of AVI polymers Limited for the year
ended on 31"'March, 2016 and to the best ofour knowledge and belief:

(r) these statements do not contain any materially
contain statements that might be misleading;

untrue statement or omit any material fact or

(b)

(c)

(ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the company,s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable raws and regulations.

There are, to the best ofour knowledge and belief, no tmnsactions entered into by the company durng the
year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative ofthe company,s code ofconduct.

we accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining intemal controls for financial reporting and that
we have evaluated the effectiveness of intemal control systems of the company pertaining to financial
reporting and the company has disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Comnittee, d.eficiencies rn the
design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which they are aware and the steps the company
has taken or propose to take to rectiq/ these deficiencies.

We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee

(i) significant changes in internar contror over financial reporting duri'g the year;

(ii) significant changes, if any, in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements: and

(iii) instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement therein, if
any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the company,s intemal
control system over financial reporting.

(d)

Mitesh Meghani
Chief Financial Oflicer

Place: Ahmedabad
Date:27/05/2016

Ma:naging Director
DIN:00162160
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DISCLOSURES

Materially significant related party transactions

Al1 the Related Party 'I'ransactions if any are forming part of the notes to the Balance Sheet' other than those

there was no materially significant related party transaction with its promoters' dtectors or the management'

their subsidiaries or relatives etc. that had a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

The accounting treatment involved in the preparation of the financiai statements is disclosed in the notes to the

accounts.

Details of non compliance by the company, penalties, strictures imposed on the company by the Stock

n*rhung" or Securities and Eichange goard of India (SEBI) or any Authority on any matter related to capital

markets during last tlree Yearc:

There has been no instance ofnon- compliance by the Company on any matter related to capital markets durilg

the last three years and hence no p".tu1ti". ot .t i"to.", have been imposed on the Company by the stock

exchange or SEBI or any other statutory authority'

By Order of the Board

FOR A\T POLIMERS LIMITED

Date
Place

21t0512016

Ahmedabad Chairman and Director
DIN:00162160
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To the members of AVI polymers Limited,

we have examined the compliance-of conditions of corporate. Govemance by AVI polymers Limited (.,the company,)ror the year ended 31"'March,2016, as sripulated in Clause 49 of thre_Listing Ogr""_"ir-ii"i.ting Agreement,,) of tlecompanv with the stock exchanges for the period l't April,2o15 ro 
39'l 

NoSrnuer,Toit tu ).1* ,n" .levant provisionsof SEBI( Listing obligations and Disclosure R"qui..;;;;; R"eurations,20l 5 (.. Listing Regulations,,) as referred to inRegulation 15(2) of the Listing Regulations for th; p";l;;;1;;;".ber,2015 to 3l"tM arch.20r6.
The compliance ofthe conditions of Corporate Govemance is thrrimited to procedures uoJmJ"-"no,ion thereor, .."d;;";'"':"fl#1y,:::AffH"'"H?1,"*Tiff:ffiff;
of corporate governance' It is neither an audit nor an expression of opiriion o" ,rr" oo"r"r-ui ,Lllrents of the company.
In our opinion and to lhe best ofour inForrnetin. ,6A ^^^^-at-- - ,

has complied with th" 
"ooaitioorflf^t*:T1i""o 

according to explanation given to us, we certiff that the company
Regulations as applicable. 

i or corporate governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing agreement/ Liffi
we further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to Jhe-futue viab ity of the company nor the efficiency oreffectiveness with wfuch the management has conducted the affairs of the companv.

Place: Ahmedabad
Date:27/0512016

FOR, S.S. DASANI & Co.,
CTIARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 116521W

k+""
Arpit Shah
Partner

Membership No: 125043
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Annexure-l to the Co orate Governance Re ort
Nomination and Remuneration policy

r. PREAMBLE

2, OBJECTTVE

Pursuant to the section 178 of the companies Act,2013 (hereinafter refer as ..the Act") read with the rule 6 of thecompanies (Meeting of the Board and its powers)Rules, 2014 and Regulation 19 of the sEBl(listing obligationsand Disclosures Requirements) Regulations,20 r 5 signed by the company with the Stock Exchanges, TheNomination and Remuneration comnittee of the Board of the company has formulated a remunemtion policy todecide the cdteria for the appointment and for the remuneration to the Directors, key managerial personnel andother emDlovees.

lY.

To guide the Board in relafion to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Maaagerial personnel andSenior Management

To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the Board forfurther evaluation ofthe Board
To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Drectors, Key Managerial personnel and
Senior Management.
To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and senior Management reward linked directly to their effort,performance, dedication and achievement relating to the Company,s operations
To retain' motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented managenal
penons and create competitive advantage.
To devise a policy on Board diversity.
To develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan

Yl.

vll.

a.

The Board has constituted the "Nomination and Remuneration committee" of the Board which is in line with the
requirement under the Companies Act, 20 1 3 .

The Board has authority to reconstitute this Corffnittee from time ro ume.

The Committee shall, while formulating the policy ensure that:
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the level and composition of remunerarin. j. _-^^^_, r, -- *&*"'{e*-**c-*

ffimg#:;"i':'#ff:1ff#ffiHfr1 jijT::l to €nract, retain and motivate thecutrves of the quality required to run the. relationshipofremuner
. Remun".atioo 

-**'atlon to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

l*r*"ffi #""lff :irffi#:Yffi *;m;#::T;::"'"n'inv"vesa
king ofthe company and its goals.The meeting ofthe Comniftee shall be held at such regular intervals as may be required.

I""::*? disclosures of rhis policy shall be made in the Arurualot the companies Act, 2013 and clause 49 of the Lirtios A-l:pott 
ofthe company in tenns of Section l7gubllgations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations;;;: 

dcreement and Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing

a) The Director must have

^*#;*t"'.';Jili ":.i:#":if,ffil".i:J:::T: #il#i:?i,*i,"1i:f :: #il::l;{
3l ff: #::X :Ht:jff:::,*" 

.*est personar and proressionar ethics, inr.esdry and varues
oo*r. 

"r rn*"0";:::11;.*l 
t*"at interest with the co

inreresr,irtherear","".";;;:,?x:T**hi*1.r"",tr#k:,.::ff ,",iff ":#:*ffi 
,:

The Policy is largely based on industry benchmarks, the Comgroup comparison, factors rike inflari.","," r",n.J1"*ff."ff1il}||Tfr:;rl:';:;: to" industry, peer

a) For the Whole Time Directors/ Executive Directors:
r Nomination and Remune

m:ml_**#:$;jf.#IlJJffi ;ffi :r"itii,;:."hT,:ffi T:ff ::,,::,,T:t:. Remuneration," **;n:';:"..lj.T:J#:H;"*"
ffi ff T'#t.ecompanvduring*"r"".*o*,1"0#',uH1"*::*"t--Jl#Jn"r:fffi::.H
However, no remuneratio
company does no, ."n"*J',1'nTI |lH,:?l;:'rff made to anv directors or the company and hence
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b) For the Key Managerial personnel and Other Employees:

The remuneration of other KMp, and other emproyees largely consists of basic sarary, perquisites, andallowances (both fixsd and variable). perquisit., *. p"ia 
"""""iairy 

to the company policy.

The components of the total re
panem,quarincatiooa,"o..i.#frffi Jtr#*y#r1ffi ,.#ffi ilffi:rTnlll; j:fi,,Hthe remuneration package takes into consicleration curr"ot 

"rrrploy*"o, 
,"ao*o.

This policy shall remain in force unless modified by the Remunerauon conmittee.
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- - . . Resistl;1"?*:,, f,'#"tlXHlffiit##B?""r, 
Ranchi _ 834 001Mobile: +91 7048360390'" *i46#6*-*o* websire: www.avinorcru: rzzzo+rutlEFlcoosz3i--*'" .::.-=..,v,uurwners.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP

23rd Annual General Meeting _ September 2 6rh, 2016

I hereby record my presence at the Twenty-third Annual General Meeting of the members of the compaay held
;:i,no*" 

compound, old H B Road, Ranchi - $4 0;i on ruonary, 26th dayof September ,201.6 at 1,r.00

Full Name of the Member (in BLOCK LETTERS)

Regd. Folio No.
No. of Shares held

DP iD No.

Full name of the proxy (in BLOCK LETTERS)

Member's / proxy,s Signature

Client ID No.
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PROXYF'ORM

lpurlynt io Section 105(6) ofthe Companies
Act,Zol3 read with Rule 19(3) ofthe comoanies
(Management and Administration) Rules,2ol4l

AVI POLYMERS LIMITED
Registered Office: At Ambica Compo'nd, Old H B Road, Ranchi _ 834 001Mobile: +91 1048360390, e-mait: g+g!4g@g$q.ii!q!q *lliit", ***.u,,ioorurn",.."o*

CIN : L2i 204rH1 993pLC00 5233

Name of the Member(s):
Registered address:
E-mail Id:
Folio No./ Client ID:
DP Id:

VWe being the member(s) of

(1) Name:

shares of the above named Company hereby appoint:

Address:

E-mail Id:

(2) Name:

or failing him;

Address:

E-mail Id:

(3.; Name:

or failing him;

Address:

E-mail Id:
or fail.ing him;
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as mylour proxy to attend and, vgJe (on a poli) for me /us.a,,d 
_on 

mylo'r behalf at the 23.d Annual GeneralMeeting orrhe company ro be held 
"; 

M;,,;;;:iF #;;r"r, zoro it i r-06-ffi iio,io_b,"u 
"o.oound, 

ordH B Road' Ranchi - 834 001 and at any adjoumnl;*;;;;;"jr r"spect of such resolution as are indicate berow:

Paniculars of Resolution

ORDINARY BUSINESS

To- reciu., Con
at 3l"March,20l6 and Sratement of profit &;;r;;;;,
and Cash Flow Statement fo, tt"_y"u. "nL;;J:i"ft;lh,?::,6 

and the Reporls of the Board of Directors 
"Ja"air..,thereon-

1".?gqgllraotu@
9l1191i-r] -*o: 

retires by-rotation uoo u"iog "rifii":;;i.
To ratify appointme;t of Auditors-

Signed this day of

Signature of the mimber Signature of p.o*; holder--

2016

Affix iftevenue

Stamp

Note s:

' :HrT#'#i""1";::l;;ff:$:?:j'Jjxn#'HHiiX:"i,i,[fu"o, signed and deposited at the resistered ofnce of the

2. lt is optional to indicate your preference. lfyou leave the ,for,, 
or ,a.

proxy will be entitled to vote in- rne mamer as he/she may de", unn%tfilu,".ltt* 
blank against any or all of the resolutions, your


